MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF
INDIVIDUAL COMPLAINT TO THE
WORKING GROUP ON ARBITRARY DETENTION

TO THE WORKING GROUP ON ARBITRARY DETENTION:

NOW COMES, Scott Ash James Zirus (DOB: 6th April 1984), an Australian
National wrongfully and arbitrarily detained by the State of Texas, United States,
and acting Pro Se respectfully submits this individual complaint asserting that his
detention in the United States is arbitrary in that the basis of the deprivation of
liberty is in violation of the U.S. Constitution and relevant domestic laws: as well
as a violation of Articles 7 through 11 of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights
and Articles 9 and 14 of the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights.
In support thereof, Zirus presents the following:

I.
CLAIMS

Zirus asserts that he is arbitrarily deprived'of his liberty for the following
reasons:—

1. Zirus is actually INNOCENT of the crime for which he is
arbitrarily detained in a foreign prison;

2. Zirus was illegally interrogated after he invoked his right
to counsel before a Magistrate Judge in violation of the Fifth
and Fourteenth Amendments to the U.S. Constitution; and the
U.S. Supreme Court precedents of Edwards v. Arizona, 101 S.Ct
1880 (1981) [EDWARDS RULE] and Miranda v. Arizona, 384 U.S.
436 (1966).
This illegal interrogation resulted in a false conféssion;

3. Zirus was denied his constitutional right to effective
assistance of trial counsel as guaranteed by the Sixth and
Fourteenth Amendments to the U.S. Constitution by counsels
failure to adequately and meaningfully challenge the admissi=
bility of Zirus' illegally obtained false confession.

As a result of this ineffective assistance of trial counsel
the trial court held that Zirus' statement could be used against
him if he exercised his right to trial;

4. Zirus was denied his constitutional right to effective
assistance of trial counsel as guaranteed by the Sixth and
Fourteenth Amendments to the U.S. Constitution by counsels
misadvice about parole eligibility in his decision to enter
into a plea agreement with the prosecution.

Counsels misadvice resulted in Zirus pleading guilty to a
40 year sentence without the possibility of parole.
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Zirus' insincere plea of guilty was involuntary in violation

of the Fifth, Sixth, and Fourteenth Amendments to the U.S.
Constitution because it was the result of ineffective assistance
of trial counsel as presented in Claims 3 and 4.

By being induced to plead guilty due to ineffective assistance
of trial counsel, Zirus waived not only a judicial proceeding
that he was otherwise entitled (a trial by jury), but he also
waived other rights such as the right to confront his accusors,
the right to hold the State to their burden of proof, and the
right to direct appeal (among a myriad of other constitutionally
recognized rights):

Article VI, Sec. 2, and the Fourteenth Amendment to the U.S.
Constitution was violated by Texas authorities failure to
inform Zirus "without delay" of his right to contact the
Australian Consulate prior to his illegal interrogation as
required by Article 36 of the Vienna Convention on Consular
Relations.

Had the Australian Consulate been contacted without delay

they would have assisted Zirus in understanding his asserted
rights and provided much needed oversight to ensure his rights
were respected and honoured by Texas authorities; and,

Zirus was arbitrarily deprived a meaningful and effectual
review of his conviction and sentence during his Habeas Corpus
application because he was denied the assistance of Habeas
counsel and his application was denied without the constitu-
tionally prescribed quorum of judges.

Zirus asserts that being deprived of a meaningful and effectual
remedy to cure the violations of his fundamental and constitu-
tional rights renders his detention arbitrary in violation of
Article 9 and 14 of the International Covenant on Civil and
Political Rights, and Article 7, 8, 9, 10 and 11 of the
Universal Declaration of Human Rights.

IT.
BACKGROUND

- The Arrest and Conviction -

Scott Zirus is an Australian National wrongfully and unlawfully confined by the

State of Texas, United States, for a crime which he is actually innocent.

On 16th May 2009, Zirus arrived in the United States from Australia on

a Jl Visa as part of a 4-month international exchange program facilitated by the

American Institute for Foreign Studies to work as a camp counselor at Camp Stewart

for Boys (summer camp) in Hunt, Texas, for the U.S. summer of 2009.



On 20th August 2009, after the conclusion of camp, Zirus was arrested at
the San Antonio International Airport by Officer Jeff McCoy of the Kerr County
Sheriffs Office for alleged indecency with a camper. Zirus was transported by
McCoy to the San Antonio Police Department where Zirus was promptly brought before
a Bexar County Magistrate Judge. During the magistration hearing Zirus affirmatively
requested an attorney. The Magistrate Judge documented this request on the Magis-
tration paperwork in two separate places (see EXHIBIT A). The request recorded
upon the paperwork states:

THE MAGISTRATE ASKED WHETHER THE PERSON WANTS TO REQUEST
APPOINTED COUNSEL. THE ACCUSED DOES WANT TO REQUEST
APPOINTED COUNSEL.

This unequivocal request for an attorney before the Magistrate Judge was a clear
indication that Zirus did not feel competent dealing with Texas authorities without
legal advice, and thus Zirus intended to exercise his Fifth Amendment privileges

(To wit, right to remain silent; right to an attorney).

Despite this invocation, McCoy proceeded to transfer Zirus to Kerrville
Texas (Kerr County), where McCoy initiated a series of interrogations of Zirus
WITHOUT the requested counsel. McCoy did absolutely nothing to secure the attorney
Zirus had requested. Zirus was also not informed of his rights under the Vienna
Convention to have assistance from the Australian Consulate until after the
interrogations were over.

Subsequently, under undue influence and the inherently coercive
environment of interrogation, Zirus gave an untrue yet inculpatory statement
and signed a confession which McCoy handwrote. As will be explained in more
detail in this complaint, as a matter of U.S. Law, this interrogation was illegal

and constitutionally prohibited under Miranda and Edwards Rule.

On the 4th September 2009, Zirus was finally appointed James W. Patterson
(now deceased) and Clay B. Steadman as court-appointed counsel. Zirus was given a

'No Bond' for violation of his Visa and denied release on bail. Zirus remained
detained in the Kerr County Jail.

On 5th October 2009, Zirus was dmdicted by the 198th Judicial District

Court, Kerr County, Texas, for:




Cause No. B09-490

- Indecency with a Child by Contact [Texas Penal Code 21.11(a)(1)]

Cause No. B09-552

— Two Counts of Aggravated Sexual Assault of a Child [Texas Penal Code 22.021(a)(2)(B)]
Cause No. B09-553

- Continuous Sexual Abuse of a Child [Texas Penal Code 21.02]

On the 5th February 2010, a pre-trial hearing was held to consider Zirus' counsels
"Motion To Supress" to determine whether Zirus' false confession would be admissible
against him at trial.

Zirus' court-appointed counsel failed to present the Magistration Paperwork
(EXHIBIT A); raise an argument under EDWARDS RULE; nor question McCoy along the same
lines as in his 2012 deposition (See EXHIBIT B).

Consequently, the Court denied the Motion and held that Zirus' so-called

confession could be used to convict him if he exercised his right to trial.

On the 16th April 2010, after incessant pressure from counsel, Zirus
entered an insincere plea of guilty upon the advice of counsel on the premise that
"confessions" (whether true or false) carry significant weight at trial. As such,

a conviction and an excessive sentence (probably multiple LIFE sentences) were
inevitable.

Zirus was sentenced as per a plea agreement with the prosecutor (DA Amos
L. Barton) on the 27th April 2010. Zirus was sentenced to 20 years on the Indecency
charge (B09-490); 40 years on each count of the Aggravated Sexual Assault (B09-552);
and 40 years on the Continuous charge (B09-553). Each conviction was to run concurrently.
Zirus was lead to believe by both counsel and the prosecutor that under this plea
agreement he would be eligible for release on parole after serving half his sentence
(To wit: 20 years).

As will be explained in more detail in this Complaint, this was untrue.
Due to the Continuous charge, Zirus was inedigible for parole and would be required
to serve the 40 years day-for-day.




- The Appeal -

On 20th August 2012, Zirus submitted his first Application for Writ of Habeas Corpus
pursuant to Texas Code of Criminal Procedure, article 11.07 [See, WR-78,395-01;
WR-78,395-02; WR-78,395-03].
In this Habeas application Zirus alleged that his guilty pleas were not
voluntary, his trial counsel was ineffective, his guilty pleas were not supported
by any evidence, and the proceedings lacked due process because of pretrial publicity.
On 10th October 2012 the Texas Court of Criminal Appeals ordered the
trial court to make "Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law" regarding Zirus' claims.
An affidavit of Amos L. Barton (District Attorney/Prosecutor) was filed on 24th
October 2012. An affidavit of James W. Patterson (court appointed counsel) was filed
on 25th October 2012, and an affidavit of Clay B. Steadman (appointed co-counsel)
was filed on 2lst December 2012. Zirus did NOT receive a copy of any of these
affidavits despite his 14th November 2012 "Motion To Request Opportunity To Respond
To Trial Counsel's Affidavit". In this Motion Zirus requested "that a copy of the
trial counsels affidavit be forwarded to Applicant [Zirus] and that he have the
opportunity to respond to it with additional information, evidence and arguments,
in order to assist the trial court in its supplemental findings of fact and conclusions

of law". This Motion was ignored.

After Zirus' conviction, the families of his accusors brought a series
of multi-million dollar lawsuits against him, AIFS, and Camp Stewart. Zirus was
able to secure a Pro Bono attorney to represent him in these suits.

On 10th July 2012, as part of Discovery for these lawsuits, Zirus' civil
attorney deposed Officer Jeff McCoy. McCoy unequivocally testified under oath to
facts that establish that Zirus' inculpatory statement was obtained in violation
of EDWARDS RULE (See, EXHIBIT B).

On 18th December 2012, Zirus received a copy of McCoy's Deposition from
his civil attorney.

On 3rd January 2013, because McCoy's Deposition was critical to Zirus'
Habeas application in terms of proving his so-called confession was unlawfully
obtained in violation of his invoked right to counsel, Zirus sent a Supplemental
Writ of Habeas Corpus Application adding McCoy's Deposition to support his ineffective
assistance of trial counsel and suppression claims, and added a claim that he should
receive an out-of-time direct appeal of the denial of his pretrial Motion To Suppress.




In the Supplemental Memorandum, Zirus specifically requested that:the
Court take JUDICIAL NOTICE of McCoy's Deposition pursuant to Texas Rules of
Evidence 201(d). He explained that this deposition was not available at the time
Zirus submitted his original Habeas Application because it had yet to be transcribed
to writing.

On the same day (3rd January 2013), the Trial Court filed its Finding of
Fact and Conclusions of Law without considering McCoy's Deposition, the claim
concerning the out-of-time direct appeal, or allowing Zirus an opportunity to

respond to trial counsel's affidavits.

The Supplemental Record was received by the Texas Court of Criminal Appeals
on 7th January 2013, and Zirus received a copy of the trial courts 'Findings of
Fact and Conclusions of Law' on the 1llth January 2013. Zirus realized that McCoy's
Deposition had NOT been considered and resent the Supplemental Writ Application
via certified mail (Cert No. 7001 2510 0003 1040 4066) to the Trial Court on
15th January 2013, and sent the same via certified mail (Cert No. 7001 2510 0002
9229 6697) to the Texas Court of Criminal Appeals on 16th January 2013.

On 8th April 2013, Zirus sent a letter addressed openly to the Texas
Court of Criminal Appeals again raising the issues concerning McCoy's Deposition
and the fact that the trial court "did not address the evidence and issues raised
in that Supplemental Writ. This needs to be done so that the Court of Criminal

Appeals has all relevant and necessary facts at hand".

On 17th April 2013, the Texas Court of Criminal Appeals DENIED Zirus'
Habeas Corpus Application stating that he failed "to controvert counsel's
Statements with any credible evidence showing both deficient performance and
resulting harm [NOTE: Zirus was not given an opportunity to controvert statements]
--+ This Court agrees with the trial court that both counsel were not deficient as
Applicant alleged [NOTE: Trial Court did not consider McCoy's Deposition]. Applicant
also fails to show that his confession to police was unlawfully obtained and it
would have been suppressed if counsel had argued the suppression issue differently
[NOTE: EDWARDS RULES and McCoy's Deposition] and the record shows that Applicant
waived his right to appeal as part of his plea agreement with the State, so there

could be no appeal of the trial court's denial of the supression issue that were
raised". See, Ex parte Zirus, 2013 WL 1655672.




On 23rd April 2013, Zirus filed a "Request For the Court Upon It's Own
Motion To Reconsider En Banc", again pointing out that the trial court did not
consider McCoy's Deposition. The Motion To Reconsider was denied by the Texas

Court of Criminal Appeals on 7th May 2013.

On 23rd January 2014, Zirus filed a Pro Se federal Habeas Corpus pursuant

to 28 U.S.C. 2254 in the US District Court for the Western District of Texas, San

Antonio Division. See, Zirus v. Stephens, 5:14-CV-00154.
The petition was ultimately dismissed with prejudice on 28th April 2014

as untimely pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 2244(d) because Zirus failed to meet the arbitrary

one-year statute of limitations created by the Antiterrorism and Effective Death
Penalty Act (AEDPA).

However, the US District Court held-the following in its Memorandum

Opinion and Order (Doc. 10) establishing:

* "Petitioner's request for legal representation was documented on the
State Court records and clearly known to petitioner at the time
petitioner made that request" (pg. 6)

* "The record now before this Court clearly establishes petitioner was
actually aware he invoked his right to counsel on August 20, 2009"
(pg. 8)

* "... his arresting officer would subsequently confirm in a civil
deposition that petitioner did, in fact, invoke petitioners right
to counsel at petitioners initial appearance" (pg. 10)

* "[Pletitioner herein had actual, personal, -knowledge of the factual

predicate of his claim in this federal habeas corpus proceeding (i.e.,

that petitioner properly invoked his right to:counsel prior to being
Questioned by law enforcement officials" (pg. 7)

in an appearance before the State Magistrate, petitioner was most

assuredly aware he had requested appointment of counsel" (pg. 13)
The significant thing about this dismissal is that the ruling of the State and
federal court directly conflict in their Justification for denying Zirus relief.
Essentially the State Court said: "No, your rights were not violated"; and the
Federal Court said: "Yes, your rights were violated - But, we can't help you
because you filed your petition too late".

"While petitioner may not have fully understood the legal implications
of his actions when he invoked his right to counsel on August 20, 2009




Zirus petitioned the Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals for a Certificate
of Appealability which was denied (Cause No. 14-50487).
He then petitioned the U.S. Supreme Court. for a Writ of Certiorari

which was also denied (Cause No. 14-9593).

- The Reclassification / No Parole -

Before accepting his insincere plea of quilty, Zirus was lead to believe by his
counsel, the prosecutor, and media reports that he was eligible for parole after
serving half his sentence (To wit: 20 years). This was not true.

On 6th September 2016, Zirus was "reclassified" by the Texas Department
of Criminal Justice because he was ineligible for parole due to the Continuous
charge (B09-553). See, Texas Government Code 508.145(a).

- ~ This was the first time he became aware that he was not eligible for
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parole and must fully discharge the 40 year sentence.

On 9th February 2017, Zirus filed a successive Habeas Corpus Application
pursuant to Texas Code of Criminal Procedure, Article 11.07 raising a parole
misadvice claim under the precedent of EXx parte Moussazadeh, 361 S.W.3d 684 (Tex.
Crim. App. 2012) [MOUSSAZADEH III]. See, Ex parte Zirus, WR~78,395-05; WR-78,395-06;
WR-78,395-07.

Zirus argued that his plea was involuntary and that he received ineffective

assistance of trial counsel for the misadvice that he would be eligible for parole.
Zirus asserted that he was prejudiced by counsels inadequate advice of parole
eligibility because he was not fully informed as to the consequences of his plea,

ygh ~ and never intended to sign-. for a 40 year FLAT - which was practically a LIFE
sentence. Had Zirus known he was ineligible for parole he would not have plead
quilty and would have insisted on taking all charges to trial.

Zirus argued that the "reclassification" constituted a new "factual basis"
to overcome the Procedural bar against Successive h

disagreed and on 26th July 2017 the Court dismissed
Code of Criminal Procedure, Article 11.07,

abeas applications. The Court
Zirus' claim pursuant to Texas

Sec. 4, without ruling on the merits.



When the Court of Criminal Appeals originally decided MOUSSAZADEH III
in 2012 the question was left open as to its retroactivity status. On 20th
September 2017, the Texas Court of Criminal Appeals issued their decision in
Ex parte Evans, 537 S.W.3d 109 (Tex. Crim. App. 2017).

In her concurring opinion in Evans, Judge Keller (with Judge Harvey

joining), explained that "several factors weigh in favor of retroactivity" of
MOUSSAZADEH III. The first being that "the rule in Moussazadeh III was once the
old rule" and that "it seems more appropriate to accord retroactivity status to
a new rule that once was the rule than to a new rule that is truly new". She
concluded that "the combination of these factors is, in my judgment, sufficient
to accord retroactive effect here".

Zirus argued in a Motion To Reconsider filed on 4th October 2018 that
this constituted a new "legal basis" to overcome the procedural bar against
successive Habeas Corpus Applications - however Judge Keller's opinion in Evans

was dictum and the retroactive application of MOUSSAZADEH III remains ambiguous
to this day.

Zirus' Motion To Reconsider remained pending for well over a year and

was eventually refused without providing Zirus notice.

IIT.
ARGUMENTS AND AUTHORITIES

— EDWARDS RULE / ILLEGAL INTERROGATION -

STANDARD OF REVIEW

In Miranda v. Arizona, 384 U.S. 436, 473 (1966), the U.S. Supreme Court said:

Once warnings have been given, the subsequent procedure is clear.

If the individual indicates in any manner, at any time prior to or
during questioning, that he wishes to remain silent, the interrogation
must cease. At this point he has shown that he intends to exercise his
Fifth Amendment privilege; any statement taken after the person invokes
his privilege cannot be other than the product of compulsion, subtle

or otherwise. Without the right to cut off questioning, the setting of
in-custody interrogation operates on the individual to: overcome free
choice in producing a statement after the privilege has been once invoked.
If the individual ‘states that he wants an attorney, the interrogation
must cease until an attorney is present. At that time the individual
must have the opportunity to confer with the attorney and to have him
present during any subsequent questioning. If the individual cannot
obtain an attorney and he indicates that he wants one before speaking
to police, they must respect his decision to remain silent.
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The: quoted language commands that, once a suspect indicates either a desire
to remain silent or a desire for an attorney, all questioning must stop, at
least until the suspect confers with an attorney.

Miranda created a rigid rule that an accused's request for an attorney
is per se an invocation of Fifth Amendment rights, requiring that all interrogation
cease. This rigid rule is based on an attorneys unique ability to protect the Fifth
Amendment rights of a client undergoing custodial interrogation. Once an accused
person indicates that he or she is not competent to deal with the authorities
without legal advice, Courts will closely examine any later choice to make a
decision without counsel's presence. Therefore, although the accused may waive
Miranda Rights and submit to interrogation, the U.S. Supreme Court has recognized
that additional safeguards are necessary after an accused has exercised the right

to counsel.

THE EDWARDS RULE: The U.S. Supreme Court established these safequards in the
case of Edwards v. Arizona, 101 S.Ct. 1880 (198l). The Court held:

[Wlhen an accused has invoked his right to have counsel present during
custodial interrogation, a valid waiver of that right cannot be

established by showing only that he responded to further police~initiated
Custodial interrogation even if he has been advised of his rights. We
further hold that an accused, such as [the defendant], having expressed

his desire to deal with the police only through counsel, is not subject

to further interrogation by the authorities until counsel has been made
available to him, unless the accused himself initiates further communication,
exchanges, or conversations with the police. 101 S.Ct. at 1884-85.

The requirement that counsel be "made available" refers to more than an opportunity
to consult with an attorney outside the interrogation room. In Minnick v. Mississippi,
111 S.Ct. 486 (1990), the U.S. Supreme Court held:

a fai;:reading of Edwards and subsequent cases demonstrate that we
have interpreted the rule to bar police-initiated interrogation unless
the accused has counsel with him at the time of questioning... [Wlhen
counsel is requested, interrogation must cease, and officials may not
reinitiate interrogation without counsel present, whether or not the
accused has consulted with his attorney,
The Minick Rule has no time limitation and is effective as long as the suspect
remains in custody. Therefore, once a defendant invokes the right to counsel,
the police are forever barred from initiating further custodial interrogation-of
the defendant unless defense counsel is present at the interview. Moreover, the
Minnic¢k Rule bars further police~initiated interrogation about unrelated charges

unless counsel is present. Arizona v. Robertson, 108 S.Ct. 2093 (1988).
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In sumary, unless counsel is present, or unless the accused initiates
further conversation, a waiver of Miranda Rights after invocation of the right to
counsel is presumed involuntary. Incriminating statements obtained after such an
involuntary waiver, regardless of their merit, will be suppressed. See, Martinez
v. State, 127 S.W.3d 792 (Tex. Crim. App. 2004).

- McCOY'S DEPOSITION -

After Zirus' conviction his accusors families brought a series of multi-million
dollar lawsuits against him, AIFS, and Camp Stewart. In total there were 8 lawsuits.
Zirus' co-defendants jointly settled for over $9.2 million, and all claims were
DISMISSED against Zirus as "uncertain, indefinite, and incapable of being satisfactorily
established" (See, 5:10-CV-1044, Doc. 317, pg. 3).
For the lawsuits Zirus secured the representation of a Pro Bono Civil
Attorney. On 10th July 2012, as part of Discovery for the lawsuits, Zirus' civil
attorney deposed Officer Jeff McCoy under oath. See, EXHIBIT B — McCOY'S DEPOSITION) .
McCoy unequivocally testified to facts which establish that Zirus'
inculpatory statement was obtained in violation of EDWARDS RULE.

In significant part, McCoy testified as follows:

A) After Zirus' arrest, he was taken before a Bexar County Magistrate
Judge (page 70, line 19-22)

B) That Zirus invoked his right to an attorney during the Magistration
Hearing (page 74, line 21 - page 75, line 8) [Cf. EXHIBIT A].

[Attorney Gibson referring to Magistrate Document]

Q. Okay. Well, take a look down there at the last -- you'll see
down at the bottom there it says, you're remanded without bond
or bond is set. You see that part?

A. [McCoy] Yes.

Q. Take a look at the sentence before that. Could you read that to
the -- to the court?

A. The Magistrate asked whether the berson wants to request appointed
counsel. The accused does want to request appointed counsel.

Q. So he did request appointed counsel at the interview with the
magistrate, correct?

A. With the magistrate, yes.

C) McCoy was given a copy of the Magistrate Paperwork which he placed
in his stack of papers (page 73, line 1-9)
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D) That McCoy initiated the interrogation, and that Zirus d%d NOT
request to be interviewed (page 71, line 22 - page 72, line 8)

E)

F)

G)

H)

Q.

A.
Q.

A.
Q.
A.

[GIBSON] And after they... after that appearance before the
magistrate Mr. Zirus then was brought to Kerrville for interro-
gation, correct?

[McCoy] He was brought to Kerrville for an interview, yes sir.
Okay. I didn't —— I didn't want to use a —— if I use a term like
that wrong, correct me. He was brought here specifically for the
purpose of you interviewing him, right?

True.

Alright. Did he request to be interviewed?

No.

That Zirus was NOT provided the requested attorney during interrogation.
(page 80, line 1-3)

Q.

A.

[GIBSON] Just for the record, is it true he did not have counsel
at the time of the interview, cétrrect?
[McCoy] True.

That Zirus was under arrest / a prisoner during entire interrogation
(page 72, line 20-25)

That Zirus did NOT initiate the interrogation (page 72, line 3-8)

That McCoy, although knowing about the Magistration Paperwork, made
absolutely no attempt to get Zirus the attorney he requested (page
73, line 14 - page 74, line 7)

0.

[GIBSON] Did you notify anybody at the district attorney's office
in Kerrville about - of the existence of this form concerning his
appearance before the magistrate?

[McCoy] Yes.

When?

After the interview.

Well, before the interview you did nothing with the form correct?
No.

What did you do before the interview to notify the district attorney's
office that Mr. Zirus had requested counsel be appointed him?
Nothing.

Did you notify the district judge or the district judge's clerk?
No.

Did you notify anyone?

No.

(page 75, line 9-23)

0.

A.
0.

[GIBSON] Okay. Did the authorities take any action to obtain
appointed counsel for Mr. Zirus before you began the interview
process that day?

[McCoy] No.

So basically Mr. Zirus at the hearing before the magistrate had
requested counsel, but essentially nothing was done to obtain
counsel before the interview began, correct?
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A. He did not request counsel with me.

Q. He did request counsel to the magistrate, right?

A. True.

Q. And nothing was done to obtain counsel for Mr. Zirus before the

interview process began, correct?
A. True.

(page 77, line 7-12)

Q. [GIBSON] Okay. Now —- so its true that you did not discuss with
Zirus what, if anything, was being done to obtain appointed counsel
for him that he had requested before the magistrate before you
began the interview?

A. True.

-~ PAROLE MISADVICE - |
Zirus' guilty pleas were based upon the misadvice and inadequate information from ‘
his court appointed counsel that by pleading guilty pursuant to a plea bargain he
would be eligible for parole after serving half his sentence.
However, this was not true because: Zirus was convicted of Continuous
Sexual Abuse pursuant to Texas Penal Code 21.02 in cause number B09-553. According
to Texas Government Code 508.145(a) Zirus is ineligible for release on parole due

to his conviction under Texas Penal Code 21.02.

EXHIBITS D through S unequivocally establish that Zirus, his counsel,
the State, the media, the complainant's father, the Australian Embassy and the
Attorney General's Department were ALL under the implied belief that Zirus would

be eligible for parole after serving half his sentence.

PLEA AGREEMENT INVALID

Zirus' plea agreement is invalid as there was clearly an implied agreement between
him and the State that by entering into a guilty plea he would be eligible for
parole. When parole eligibility is made an affirmative part or an essential element
of a plea bargain, and that misunderstanding make the agreement impossible to

fulfill the plea is involuntary. Ex parte Stephenson, 722 S.W.2d 426 (Tex. Crim.
App. 1987).

As the State and Zirus misunderstood that the essential element of
parole cannot be fulfilled because it is prohibited by statute, Zirus' plea bargain

is unenforceable and the parties must be returned to their original positions.
Ex parte Cox, 482 S.W.3d 112 (Tex. Crim. App. 2016).
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The plea bargain in this case was a package deal. A reduced punishment

of the Continuous charge was the consideration offered by the State to induce the
promise of Zirus to plead guilty to his Aggravated Sexual Assault and Indecency
charges. As Zirus had a viable defense at trial for all of these charges, he
would have entered a plea of not guilty and instead insisted on going to trial

had he known his sentence would be ineligible for parole.

INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE
In Hill v. Lockhart, 106 S.Ct. 366 (1985), the U.S. Supreme Court held that in

a plea bargain context, a defendant seeking to establish ineffective assistance
of counsel must demonstrate that:

1) that trial counsel's performance was deficient; and,

2) a "reasonable probability" that, but for the deficient performance,
he would not have plead guilty and would have insisted on going to
trial.

The Texas Court of Criminal Appeals has conclusively held that an: attorney's
misadvice and inadequate information concerning parole eligibility constitutes

deficient performance. Ex parte Maussazadeh, 361 S.W.3d 684 (Tex. Crim. App. 2012).

In Miller v. State, 548 S.W.3d 497 (Tex. Crim. App. 2018), the Texas
Court of Criminal Appeals held that "the likelihood of a better outcome from a

waived or forfeited proceeding is NOT the correct prejudice standard on a claim
of ineffective assistance of counsel because the Court.cannot accord any presumption

of reliability to judicial proceedings that never took place". See also, Roe v.

F
lores—-Ortega, 528 U.s. 470, 483, 120 S.Ct. 1029 (2000); smith v. Robbins, 578 U.S
259, 120 S.Ct. 746 (2000). .

Instead, "

would have opted for

Iee v. U.s. °d adequately” Miller, 14. See also,

-+ 137 S.Ct. 1958 (2017).
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Likewise, the U.S. Supreme Court has explained that the "reasonable
probability" standard is "not the same as, and should not be confused with, a
requirement that a defendant prove by a preponderance of the evidence that but
for the error things would have been different" U.S. v. Dominguez-Benitas, 542
U.S. 74, 83, n. 9 (2004).

ZIRUS WOULD HAVE INSISTED ON TRIAL

Zirus was prejudiced by counsel's misadvice on parole eligibility because he was

not fully informed as to the consequence of his plea, and never intended to agree
to serve 40 years FLAT - which is practically a LIFE sentence.

Zirus strongly asserts that, but for the misadvice of counsel or the-
unenforceable promise by the State, he would not have accepted the plea bargain
or plead guilty, and would have insisted on exercising his right to;trial.

To support this, Zirus presents the prior denial of the exact same plea
bargain. EXHIBIT C is a 14th April 2010 Report by the Australian Embassy that
states:

"Mr. Zirus confirmed that he would not accept the plea bargain offered
by the prosecution as it would require him toiplead guilty as charged"

The significant factor to take from EXHIBIT C is that despite the fact Zirus thought
he was eligible :for parole, he.still rejected the States offer because "it would
require him to plead guilty as charged".

So logic dictates that had Zirus actually known he would have been
ineligible for parole, there would be absolutely no way he would have consideréd

the plea offer and would have insisted on going to trial.

ADMISSION / OMISSION = INEFFECTIVE -+ INVOLUNTARY PLEA

It is well established in both Texas and U.S. Law that a plea of guilty cannot be
voluntary and intelligently made if it is the result of ineffective assistance of

counsel. See, EX parte Moussazadeh, 361 S.W.3d 684 (Tex. Crim. App. 2012): Ex parte
Harrington, 310 S.W.3d 452, 459 (Tex. Crim. App. 2010).

Zirus argues that "parole misadvice" can come in the form of both an

admission or omission. Either counsel was ineffective for the admission of incorrect
information (parole eligibility  in 20 years), or the omission of pertinent information
(not telling Zirus he would be ineligible for parole). In both cases Zirus did not

have the necessary information to make an informed decision as to the actual -

consequence of accepting the plea bargain and pleading guilty.
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PACKAGE DEAL
The plea bargain in this case was a "package deal". Each plea was related to, and
conditioned on, the acceptance of the State's plea recommendation in the other
counts and causes. Thus, the plea offer was an "all-or-nothing". See, EX parte
Cox, 482 S.W.3d 112 (Tex. Crim. App. 2016).

This is evident from the fact Zirus accepted the maximum 20-years
for the Indecency charge. There would be no benefit in pleading guilty to such

if it had not been related to, and conditioned on, the other counts and causes

as part of a package deal.
Furthermore, all pleas were entered at the same time and are run
concurrently - this would not be the case had the plea bargain not been an

"all-or-nothing" package deal.

APPROPRIATE REMEDY SHOULD HAVE BEEN

When a defendant who has entered a negotiated plea of guilty challenges his

conviction and is successful, the appropriate remedy (if possible) is specific
performance of the plea. Ex parte Cox, 482 S.W.3d 112, n. 10 (Tex. Crim. App.
2016).

If specific performance is not available, then the appropriate
remedy is withdrawal of the plea and returning the parties to the positions held
before the plea agreement was made. Id.

In Zirus':case, specific performance is not available because Texas

Government -Code 508.145(a) does not statutorily permit parole eligibility for an
offense-under Texas Penal Code 21.02.

Because the plea bargain was a "package deal" and an implied part of
the plea bargain cannot be fulfilled, the entire plea bargain is unenforceable

and the parties must be returned to their original positions.

HAD ZIRUS HABEAS COUNSEL

The merits of this claim was never ruled upon because review was procedurally
barred by Texas Code of Criminal Procedure, Article 11.07, Sec. 4 - which prohibit
Successive Habeas Corpus applications unless under certain situations.

Had Zirus been provided Habeas Counsel to assist in the filing of his
initial Habeas Corpus application, a competent attorney would have recognized that
Zirus was ineligible for parole and raised such claim on the initial Habeas Corpus
application. As such, the claim would have been reviewed on its merits and, if

provided meaningful review, would have been granted and Zirus' conviction would
have been overturned.
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Instead, Zirus did not discover the parole misadvice until TDCJ
reclassified him in September 2016. By this time it was too late to raise
a reviewable claim (unless the Texas Court of Criminal Appeals created a new
"legal basis" to raise the claim by making a retroactivity analysis on
MOUSSAZADEH III - but they have not).

- EVIDENCE OF PAROLE MISADVICE -
The evidence that Zirus was misinformed about his parole eligibility is absolutely
overwhelming and is corroborated by various independent sources. In evaluating the

merits of Zirus' parole misadvice claim, the following should be considered:

AUSTRALIAN EMBASSY RECORDS (EXHIBITS D and E)

On 19th April 2010, the Monday after accepting the plea bargain, Zirus was granted
access to take a phonecall from the Australian Embassy in Washington, DC. In the
Embassy Report from that phone call (EXHIBIT D) it states at Point 2 that:

Mr. Zirus confirmed that he accepted a plea bargain on Friday 16

April 2010 which would require him to serve a sentence of 40 years.

Mr. Zirus indicated that he understood that in accepting the plea

bargain he was pleading quilty to class 3 aggravated felony offenses

which would require him to serve a minimum of 50 percent of the sentence
prior to being eligible for parole.

This unequivocally shows that Zirus' understanding:.at the time of accepting the
Plea bargain was that he would be eligible for parole after serving half his
sentence (20 years).

Logic dictates that had either attorney informed Zirus correctly that
he was ineligible for parole because of the Continuous charge, he would have
communicated this to the Australian Embassy during the phone call.

In a subsequent Embassy Report (EXHIBIT E) dated 28th April 2010
(the day after the Sentencing Hearing) it states:
Mr. Zirus stated that the plea bargain consisted of him serving

concurrent sentences of a total of 40 years, with parole being
possible after 20 years incarceration.

There should be no doubt that Zirus believed that he was eligible for parole by
entering into this plea bargain.
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LETTER TO JUDGE FROM CO-COUNSEL (EXHIBIT F)
On 10th July 2017, Attorney Clay B. Steadman signed a letter to Judge Rex Emerson

of the 198th Judicial District Court, stating:

I do not recall ever discussing parole eligibility and release, with

Mr. Zirus prior to the entry of his plea on April 16, 2010. In my

review of the transcript of his Plea hearing, I was very detailed on

certain issues raised in connection to the plea proceeding, however,

there was no mention regarding Mr. Zirus' parole eligibility.
[EXHIBIT F]

In this letter Steadman denied ever discussing parole eligibility with Zirus.
Zirus avers that this failure constitutes ineffective assistance of trial counsel
because Steadman had a legal duty to fully inform Zirus of the full consequences
of his plea. Steadman admits in this letter that he did not do this.

The fact the transcript of Zirus' plea hearing is completely void of
any mention as to parole eligibility, supports the contention that Steadman never
discussed parole eligibility with Zirus. If Steadman had, he would have'more than
likely questioned Zirus about it during his thorough admonishment. Thus Steadman
was ineffective for providing inadequate information to Zirus on parole eligibility.

OTHER SIGNIFICANT PEOPLE
WHO BELIEVED ZIRUS WAS PAROLE ELIGIBILE [EXHIBITS G, H, and 1]

The belief about Zirus being parole eligible was not limited to Zirus - it extended

to DA Amos Barton, the families, and even the civil attorney representing the
families in the multi-million dollar lawsuits that followed Zirus' conuiction.

Exhibit C is a 30th April 2010 News Article by the Australian Associated
Press. In this article it states: (EXHIBIT G)

The [plea) deal of 40 years imprisonment, with the possibility of parole
after 20 years... Mr [Amos] Barton said it would be up to the Texas
Board of Pardons and Paroles to decide if Zirus would be released after
20 years.

This obviously shows that DA Amos Barton believed Zirus was eligible for release
on parole. The article then goes on to state:

Zirus may have taken the 40-year plea deal with the hope of gaining
release in 20 years, but the families say they will be present if he
fronts the parole board in 2030 to ensure he does not win release and

can't hurt another child. "We'll be at the parole hearing", a seven-
yYear-old victim's mother said.
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So not only did DA Amos Barton believe Zirus was eligible for parole, but according
to this article, so did the families - even citing one mother vowing to be at the

parole hearing in 2030.

Interestingly, this is not the only piece of evidence that shows that
the families were just as misinformed as Zirus. In a Sworn Federal Deposition
(EXHIBIT H) one of the fathers of the alleged victims in the Continuous charge,
testified that he too believed Zirus was eligible for release in 20 years, not the
entire 40 years. He states:

He gets out of jail when I'm 63 years old... He's doing 20 years in

prison [EXHIBIT H, pages 95-96]

This father was born in December 1968 (see page 6 of EXHIBIT H). So 20 years into
Zirus' 40 year sentence would render him 62 years old. Even though his son was one
of the alleged victims in the Continuous charge, he was also convinced Zirus could

be released prior to the discharge of the 40 years.

Lastly, the principle civil attorney representing the families for the
multi-million dollar lawsuits, Mr. Michael Sawicki, indicated in a post on his
'Child Safety Law Blog' that:

He [Zirus] was convicted of aggravated sexual assault of a child,

sexual contact with a child, and continuous sexual abuse of a child

younger than 14, and will have to serve at least 20 years of his
sentence until he is eligible for release [EXHIBIT I]

Clearly with so many other significant people also believing Zirus was eligible
for release on parole, parole was undoubtedly an implied part of Zirus' plea
bargain with the State.

AUSTRALIAN ATTORNEY-GENERAL'S DEPARTMENT (EXHIBIT J)
In a 15th December 2010 Unclassified Email from the federal Offenders Unit of the

Australian Attorney-General's Department to the Western Australian Office of Public
Prosecution (EXHIBIT J), it reports:

The offender [Zirus] pleaded guilty to all four charges as part of
a plea agreement under which he received a sentence of 40 years
imprisonment, with a non-parole period of 20 years.

[See, page 140 of EXHIBIT J]
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MEDIA REPORTS (EXHIBITS G, K, L, M, N, O, P, O, and R)
Media Reports published after Zirus' accepted the plea bargain are riddled with

statements such as:

"Zirus is eligible for parole in 20 years"
See, EXHIBITS K, L, M, O.
Other statements concerning parole eligibility include:

* He will be eligible for release in Texas after 20 years and will be
immediately deported to Australia [EXHIBIT O]

* The sentences will be served in Texas and he will be eligible for
parole in 20 years [EXHIBIT Q]

* The deal was 40 years imprisonment, with the possibility of parole
after 20 years [EXHIBIT G]

* Zirus will have to serve at least 20 years of his sentence until he
is eligible for release [EXHIBIT R]

Zirus has presented 11 different media reports which all state that he is eligible
for parole, but there are many more published - not one of them states that Zirus

was ineligible for parole and must subsequently discharge his 40 year plea deal.

NO_ ADMONISHMENT ON THE RECORD (EXHIBIT S)

As observed by Attorney Steadman, there is absolutely no mention of parole in the
transcripts of the Plea Hearing (Reporter's Record, Vol 4 of 5), or the Sentencing
Hearing (Reporter's Record, Vol 5 of 5).

Furthermore, in the "Rejection of Plea Offer" [EXHIBIT S], attached
to Steadman's 10th July 2017 letter, it explained that Zirus understood that the
charge of Continuous Sexual Abuse carried a minimum sentence of 25 years but says
nothing at all about the fact this charge would require Zirus to serve that sentence

(and all those running concurrently) day-for-day.

CONCLUSION ON PAROLE MISADVICE

The bottom line is this: No matter how it is looked at, the evidence shows that Zirus

was not properly informed of the fact that by accepting the plea bargain he would

be ineligible for parole and would have to discharge his entire sentence day-for—-day.
Had Zirus known this, he would not have accepted the plea bargain and instead would
have insisted on going to trial.
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- VIENNA CONVENTION -
Article 36 of the 'Vienna Convention on Consular Relations' grants a foreign
national whose'been arrested, imprisoned or taken into custody, a right to contact
their Consulate and requires the arresting government authorities to inform the
individual of this rights "without delay". See, Vienna Convention on Consular
Relations, art. 36(1)(b), Apr. 24, 1963, 21 U.S.T. 77, 100-101, 595 U.N.T.S.
261, 292 (ratified by the United States on Nov. 24, 1969); See also, Sierra v.
State, 218 S.W.3d 85 (Tex. Crim. App. 2007); Bocha v. State, 16 S.W.3d 1, 13
(Tex. Crim. App. 2000); Maldonado v. State, 998 S.W.2d 239 (Tex. Crim. App. 1999).

Article VI, Sec. 2, of the U.S. Constitution is known as the Supremecy
Clause. It states that "all treaties made, or which shall be made, under the
authority of the United States, shall be the Supreme Law of the Land".

Therefore, when the U.S. ratified the Vienna Convention on 24th November

1969, this treaty and all the legal obligations and individual rights it proclaimed,
became part of the "Supreme Law of the Land". The Supremecy Clause makes the

Vienna Convention applicable and binding to the State through the Fourteenth
Amendment.

Unfortunately, no matter how sound this legal argument may be, it has
not come to fruition in practice. The Texas Courts have held that the Vienna
Convention is unenforceable and routinely ignore violations of their legal
requirement to inform a detained foreign national "without delay" of the right

to contact their Consulate.

The consequence of ignoring the Vienna Convention in Zirus' case is
that, although he unequivocally invoked his right to. counsel before the Magistrate
Judge, he was unable to enforce that right and subsequently was subjected to an
illegal interrogation that had far-reaching ramifications that resulted in his
wrongful conviction for a crime he did not commit.

Had the Australian Consulate been contacted "without delay" it would
not only have allowed Zirus to fully understand his asserted rights, but the
Consulate would have provided much needed oversight of Zirus' situation after
his arrest. There is no question that Zirus' asserted rights would have been
respected and he would not have been illegally interrogated. The outcome of Zirus'

criminal proceeding would have been very different.
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Iv.
DETENTION IS ARBITRARY

Zirus asserts that his detention is arbitrary not only because his conviction
was obtained in violation of the U.S. Constitution, but also because there is no
meaningful or effectual remedy to cure the violations of his rights. The refusal
to recognize the right to Habeas Counsel and the Quorum of One work in tandem to
deliberately deny Pro Se indigent prisoners like Zirus meaningful access to

Habeas Corpus review. This renders his detention arbitrary.

The 'International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights' (ICCPR)
guarantees that: "All persons shall be equal before the courts and tribunals"
[see, ICCPR, art. 14.1] and that "Everyone convicted of a crime shall have the
right to his conviction and sentence being reviewed by a higher tribunal according
to law" [see, ICCPR, art. 14.5].

The ICCPR also ensures "that any person whose rights or freedoms are
herein recognized are violated have an effective remedy" [art. 2.3(a)] and "that

any person claiming such a remedy shall have his right thereto determined by
competent judicial, administrative or legislative authorities" [art. 2.3(b)].
This fundamental Human Right is designed to protect liberty and is
echoed by Article 7 and 8 of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights ["All are
equal before the law"; "Everyone has the/right to an effective remedy by the

competent national tribunal for acts violating the fundamental rights guaranteed
him by the Constitution or by law"].

It is evident from the structure, design and operation of the Texas
appellate system, and the blatant disregard for due process and meaningful review
in Zirus' case, that the Texas Habeas Corpus process is an ineffectual remedy
that renders Zirus' detention arbitrary.

— RIGHT TO HABEAS COUNSEL -
The Writ of Habeas Corpus is essential to the protection of fundamental and
constitutional rights - but in Texas, Habeas Corpus has been rendered a meaningless
ritual for those unable to afford appellate counsel. This means that justice is
equal only to that which a prisoner can afford.
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The structure, design and operation of the Texas procedural system dictates
that no indigent prisoner in Texas is entitled to the benefit of counsel in raising
a claim of "Ineffective Assistance of Trial Counsel" (IATC). This is because Texas
procedures make it virtually impossible to present an adequate claim of IATC on
Direct Appeal. The Texas Court of Criminal Appeals has explicitly stated that as
a general rule a prisoner should NOT raise an issue of IATC on Direct Appeal and
that the exclusive and correct forum is Habeas Corpus.

However, by deliberately choosing to move IATC claims outside the Direct
Appeal process where counsel is constitutionally guaranteed, Texas has significantly
diminished a prisoners ability to file such claims. This is bacause a prisoner,
unlearned in the science of the law, cannot be expected to possess the legal
knowledge necessary to prepare thoughtful and meritorious Habeas Corpus applications.
A prisoner may not only misapprehend the substantive details of Federal Constitutional
Law, the prisoner is in no position to develop the evidential basis for a claim of
IATC - which often turns on evidence outside the trial record. This is significant
because in Habeas Corpus the burden is on the prisoner to allege and prove facts
which, if true, entitle the prisoner to Habeas releif.

The U.S. Supreme Court has severely criticized the Texas appellate system
as it relates to the necessity of Habeas Counsel in Texas. Yet the Texas Legislature
has not even blinked after these holdings. See, Martinez v. Ryan, 132 S.Ct. 1309
(2012); Trevino v. Thaler, 133 S.Ct. 1911 (2013).

Significantly the U.S. Supreme Court held that Habeas Corpus is the
"initial-review collateral proceeding" for IATC claims in Texas, and as such, the

equivalent of a prisoners direct appeal as to such claims. See also; Ex parte Buck,
418 S.W.3d 98, 109 (Tex. Crim. App. 2013).
If a State does not appoint appellate counsel on a Direct Appeal, it

would be deemed unconstitutional. It stands to reason that when an "initial-review
collateral proceeding" (i.e. Habeas Corpus) is the equivalent of a prisoner Direct
Appeal as to IATC, then it follows that it is necessary for the State to appoint

appellate counsel for that appeal otherwise it would be unconstitutional. They are
fundamentally the same in all but name.

The U.S. Supreme Court has further held that when counsel is not appointed
for an "initial-review collateral proceeding" it raises "a significant risk of
injustice". See, Martinez id, and Trevino, id.

Unfortunately, Texas prisoners like Zirus lack standing to challenge
the very structure or design of the judicial system which deprives them of their

liberty. The system is designed as a closed loop which only those wealthy enough

to afford counsel can escape.
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- QUORUM OF ONE -
The Texas Constitution governs the manner in which the Texas Court of Criminal
Appeals must convene to decide its: cases. It mandates that a quorum of judges
decide whether Habeas Corpus relief should be denied - either a panel of THREE
judges or by the en banc court. See, Tex. Const. art. V, $4.

However, as exposed in Ex parte Dawson, 509 S.W.3d 294 (Tex. Crim. App.
2016) the Texas Court of Criminal Appeals' internal adminstrative procedures
effectively act as a standing order permitting an individual judge to act as a

proxy for the quorum of judges on the basis of a pre—vote on a catergory of cases
that are never actually seen by any judge other than the proxy judge.

In other words, rather than the constitutionally required quorum of three
Judges or the en banc court, the votes of all the required quorum are given to a

single proxy judge who votes on their behalf. It is essentially a quorum of one.

Although a State has the right to decide how it reviews its habeas corpus
applications, when the manner in which the review must be conducted is expressly
prescribed by law (in this case the Texas Constitution), then due process and equal
protection demand that review by meaningful, fair and adeguate in accord with the
prescribed law.

Since the Texas Constitution expressly states that Habeas Corpus review
MUST be done by a panel of three judges or by the en banc court, the Texas Court
of Criminal Appeals can not legally get around this requirement by appointing a
proxy judge to act as a quorum of one - But they do.

To add insult to injury, every application for Habeas Corpus is reviewed
by a "Writ Staff Attorney" who drafts memoranda analysing every claim a prisoner
asserts. The single judge (for which the application is randomly appointed) bases
their proxy vote on the Writ Staff Attorney's opinion in that Memoranda and their
recommendation to deny relief.

In essence, the Writ Staff Attorney (who is unelected) is the one making
the decision which Habeas Corpus applications receive relief and which ones are

denied. Then the single proxy judge votes on behalf of the constitutional quorum.
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It is beyond doubt that such a judicial facade that is depriving all
Texas prisoners of meaningful and effectual review of their convictions and
sentences. As such, for as long as this practice has been going on, Texas prisoners
like Zirus have been denied full and fair adjudication of the merits of their

Habeas Corpus applications.

V.
CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE, PREMISES CONSIDERED, Scott Ash James Zirus, asserts that his continued
Jetention by the State of Texas, United States, is ARBITRARY in that the basis of
the deprivation of liberty is in violation of the U.S. Constitution and relevant
domestic laws; as well as a violation of Articles 7 through 11 of the Universal
Declaration of Human Rights and Articles 9 and 14 of the International Covenant
on Civil and Political Rights.

Zirus requests that the Working Group on Arbitrary Detention take swift action to

assist the immediate release of Zirus into the authority and custody of the
Commonwealth of Australia.

Zirus further prays for such other and further relief to which he may show himself
Jjustly entitled.

Respectfully Submitted,

Scott Ash James Zirus

2otk Jhnuwy Ao2X
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INTAKE #: 1354438 MAG NO. CITY:
COURT NO:

COUNTY/STATE: KERR ™
THE STATE OF TEXAS WARRANT NO: 09-6047w

COUNTY OF BEXAR ASSIGN/CASE NO:
ARREST DATE: 20090820

MAGISTRATE WARNING ARREST TIME: 1116

BEWo UNDERSIGNED MAGISTRATE OEPZBEXAR COUNTY, TEXAS, ON THE ___ DAY

AT THE MAGISTRATE COURT APPEARED
ZIRUS, SCOTT AT WHICH T NFORMED THE ACCUSED OF THE CHARGE

INDECENCY W/CHILD SEXUAL CON » FILED AGAINST HIM/HER
AND OF ANY AFFIDAVIT, COMPLAINT, OR VERIFICATICN OF A WARRANT FILED THEREWITH.

THE DEFENDANT WAS INFORMED:

OF HIS/HER RIGHT TC REMAIN SILENT;

OF HIS/HER RIGHT TO RETAIN COUNSEL; _

OF HIS/HER RIGHT TO REQUEST THE APPOINTMENT OF COUNSEL IF HE/SHE IS
INDIGENT AND CAN NOT AFFORD COUNSEL;

THAT HE/SHE WILL BE ALLOWED A REASONABLE TIME AND OPPORTUNITY FOR COUNSEL; )
OF HIS/HER RIGHT TO HAVE AN ATTORNEY PRESENT DURING AN INTERVIEW WITH
PEACE OFFICERS;

OF HIS/HER RIGHT TO TERMINATE AN INTERVIEW AT ANY TIME;

THAT HE/SHE IS NOT REQUIRED T0O MAKE ANY STATEMENT;

THAT ANY STATEMENT MADE BY HIM/HER MAY BE USED AGAINST HIM/HER AT TRIAL
AND IN CCOURT;

OF HIS/HER RIGHT TO HAVE AN EXAMINING TRIAL;

IF FROM A FOREIGN NATICN, THE RIGHT TQO ACCESS HIS/HER CONSULATE;

OF THE PROCEDURES FOR REQUESTING A COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY

A. THAT AN APPLICATION NEEDS TO BE COMPLETED TO DETERMINE IF HE/SHE
QUALIFIES FOR COURT APPOINTED COUNSEL; :
THAT A CLERK WILL ASSIST HIM/HER IN FILLING CUT THE APPLICATION

THAT AN AFFIDAVIT NEEDS TO BE SIGNED;

THAT AN AFFIDAVIT IS A WRITTEN OR PRINTED DECLARATION OR STATEMENT OF
FACTS MADE VOLUNTARILY AND CONFIRMED BY OATH BEFORE A PERSON HAVING
AUTHORITY TO ADMINISTER SUCH OATH; :

THAT HE/SHE MUST QUALIFY FOR COURT APPQINTED COUNSEL;

THAT IF HE/SHE MEETS INDIGENCE STANDARDS HE/SHE WILL QUALIFY FOR COURT
AFPPOINTED COUNSEL;

UPON QUALIFICATICN PRETRIAL SERVICES WILL PROVIDE THE NAME AND PHONE
NUMBER OF THE ATTORNEY; AND

THAT COURT APPOINTED COUNSEL SHOULD CONTACT HIM/HER BY THE END OF THE
FIRST WORKING DAY AFTER APPOINTMENT.

JED WHETHER THE PERSON WANTS TO REQUEST APPOINTED COUNSEL.
DOES NOT WANT TO REQUEST COURT APPQINTED COUNSEL.

‘-JNI-I

=W W-INh
0y e v s

J 3

m a mm

THE MAGISTHAT
THE ACCUSEL

YOU ARE REMANDED WITHOUT BOND.

BOND SET: § 100000.00
{THIS IS NOT AN ADMISSION OF
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INTAKE #: 1354438 COMMITMENT CITY:

‘ IN MAGISTRATE COURT CQURT NO:

MAG NO. COUNTY/STATE: KERR ™
WARRANT NO: 09-6047W

THE STATE COF TEXAS ASSIGN/CASE NO:
COUNTY OF BEXAR _ TCKET/B- NUMBER:
TO THE SHERIFF OR ANY CONSTABLE OF BEXAR COUNTY - GREETINGS:
IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE STATE OF TEXAS:
YOU ARE HEREBY COMMANDED TO COMMIT TO THE JAIL OF YOUR COUNTY
ZIRUS, SCOTT CHARGED WITH
INDECENCY W/CHILD SEXUAL CON + A SECOND DEGREE FELONY,

HAVING FOUND PROBABLE CAUSE, I HEREBY COMMIT THIS PERSON AND ORDER YOU TO
SAFELY KEEP SAID PERSON TC ANSWER TO THE PROPER PRESIDING COURT.
SA7 PERSON MAY BE RELEASED IF PERSON GIVES GOOD AND SUFFICIENT:

BOND GUIDELINE: $10,000.00 TO $20,000.00
—! BOND AMOUNT ASSESSED AT $ 100000.00;

OR
— FINE OF $§ sew o LEVY OF § __ ... AND ARST/WRT FEE OF §

. PERSON IS REMANDED WITHOUT BOND.

AlG 20 209

SIGNED THE _ DAY OF __, "

— PERSON:

s AS\A MAGISTRATRE
IN BEXAR » TEXAS
CURRENTLY EMPLOYED? YES

COURT APPOINTED ATTORNEY? @ NO
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JEFF McCOY . JuLy 10, 2012
Y CW,, ET AL. v. ZIRUS, ET AL.

1 IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT
FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS
2 _ _ SAN ANTONICO DIVISION
3 C.W., INDIVIDUALLY, AND ) {
AS NEXT FRIEND OF C.W., )|
4 A MINOR, }(
- ) |
5 Plaintiff, ) {
) (
6 VS. ) { SA-10-CA-1044-XR
) {
7 SCOTT ASH JAMES ZIRUS, ) {
: ’ CAMP STEWART FOR BOYS, YL
8 INC. AMERICAN INSTITUTE ) {
FOR FOREIGN STUDY, INC. J
9 D/B/A CAMP AMERICA ) {
) |
10 Defendants. ) {
11
12
: S.M., INDIVIDUALLY, AND Y {
13 | J.M., INDIVIDUALLY AND AS }{
NEXT FRIEND OF L.M., 1
14 A MINCR, ) (
o
15 Plaintiffs, ) ¢
) {
16 VSs. C ) { S.A., 11-CV-645-XR
)
17 SCOTT ASH JAMES ZIRUS, ) {
CAMP STEWART FOR BOYS, ) (
18 INC. AMERICAN INSTITUTE ) {
FOR FOREIGN STUDY, INC. ) (
19 D/B/A CAMP AMERICA I
)
20 Defendants. ) '
21
22
23
25 ;
i}
T T v ——— —M
ESQUIRE SOLUTIONS _ B 800.211.DEPQ (3376)

EsquireSolutions.com  _




EFF MccDY . JULY 10, 2012
C.W., ET AL. v. ZIRUS, ET AL.
_ pess| - - : e )
. . . .
2 2
3 3
4 4
5 5
6 6
5 7
8 8
9 9
10 10
1 11
12 12
13 13
14 14
15 15
16 16
17 17
18 18
19 19
20 20
21 21
22 22
73 23
24 24
25 25
- _ Page 67 , Page 69 §
1 I I . - k
2 2
3 3
4 4
5 5
6 6
7 7
8 8
9 9
10 10
11 11
12 12
13 13
14 14
15 15 MR. DUNNAHQO: Pass the witness.
16 16 EXAMINATION
17 17 BY MR. GIBSON: :
18 18 Q. Officer, I'm Jerry Gibson. 1 represent Scott !
19 19 Zrus in this case. I just have a few questions of
20 20 you. First I'd.like to call — go back in time to the
21 21 time when you arrested Mr. Zirus at the airport,
22 22 correct?
23 23 A. True. )
24 24 Q. Okay. Now, at that time — what time of day B
25 25 was that when you arrested him, sir? K
£l
e e T et i Sy m— 4

18 (Pages 66 to 6§) )
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JEFF McCOY
C.W., ET AL. v. ZIRUS, ET'AL.

JULY 10, 2012

ESQUIRE SOLUTIONS
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Page 70 Page 72
1 A. 10:45, 1 yes, sir.
2 Q. And at that time, did you have him sign a 2 Q. Okay. Ididn't ~Ididn't want touse a - if
3 Miranda statement? 3 I use a term like that wrong, correct me. He was
4 A. Yeah. He signed a -- yeah. He signed a 4 brought here specifically for the purpese of you
5 Miranda statement there shortly after he was arrested. | 5 interviewing him, right?
6 We waiked him from -- where he was arrested he was | 6. A. True,
7 standing in line for —- to board and I've got a copy of 7 Q. All right. Did he request to be interwewed?
8 the Miranda that he signed. 8 A. No. o
9 Q. Could you pull that, please? 9 Q. 'Did he have any choice in going to the
10 A. Sure. 10 interview room?
11 Q. I'd tike to make that as an exhlblt I've got 11 A. Did he have a cholce?
12 a Bates number on mine. I'm not sure that wouid help | 12 Q. To go to the interview room?
13 you. 13 A. Yes,
14 A. 10:45 a,m. is when he signed It. 14 Q. Okay. What choice did he have?
15 Q. Could you hand that to the court reporter? I'd 115 A. He could have said no.
16 like for her to mark that as the next exhibit, please, 16 Q. Who took him to the interview room?
18 (Exhibit No. 12 marked.) - 18 Q. Anybody with you?
19 Q. (BY MR. GIBSON) As I understand it, after he 19 A. No,
20 was arrested in the airport he was taken to see a 20 Q. Okay. And at that point he was a prisoner,
21 magistrate in San Antonio? : 21 correct?
22 A. Yes, 22 A, True, i
23 Q. And what happened at the magistrate's? 23 Q. And he remained a prisoner during the entire [§
24 A. He was told of his -- why he was arrested and 24 interview process? E
25 the magistrate read him a document. 25 A. True.
. Page 71 Page 73 2
1 MR. GIBSON: All right. Let's ask the 1 Q. Did you have with you at that fime a copy of '
2 reporter to mark this as an exhibit, please. Just for 2 the magistrate waming, which we've marked as an
3 the record, it's Bates 605, 3 exhibit?
4 {Exhibit No. 13 marked.) 4 A. Yes,
5 Q. (BY MR. GIBSON) What number do we have there? | 5 Q. Okay. What did you do wn:h it prior to
) A. 13, ' 6 interviewing Mr. Zirus?
17 Q. Can you identify No. 13, please, sir? 7 A. Prior to?
8 A. Yes, sir. - 8 Q. Yes, sir,
9 Q. What is that? 9 A, Keptitin my stack of papers I'm sure.
10 A. It's the magistrate's warning, Bexar County. 10 Q. Did you notify anybody at the district
11 Q. This is a record of the appearance before the 11 attorney's office that he had been taken before a
12 magistrate in San Antonio. Can you tell the court what 12 magistrate and had signed a form?
13 time of day it was? 13 A. Can you repeat that question?
14 A. 12:40, 14 Q. Did you notify anybody at the district
15 Q. P.m.? 15 attorney's office in Kerrvilie about -- of the 2
16 A. P.m, ) 16 existence of this form concem:ng his appearance hefore
17 Q. Ckay. And does it bear Scott Zirus's 17 the magistrate? .
18 signature? ’ 18 A. Yes.
19 A. Yes. 19 Q. When?
20 Q. And the date is what? 20 A. Afterthe interview.
21 A. August 20, 2009, 21 Q. Well, before the interview you did nothing with
22 Q.. And then after they — after that appearance 22 the form, comrect?
23 before the magistrate Mr. Zirus then was brought to 23 A. No.
24 Kerrville for interrogation, correct? 24 Q. What did you do before the interview to notify N
25 A. He was brought to Kerrville for an interview, 25 the district attorney's office that Mr. Zirus had ;

1 (aes 70 to 73)
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i requested counsel be appointed for him? 1 pull that, please, sir? .2
2 A. Nothing. . 2 A Thaveit -
3 Q. Did you notify the district judge or the 3 Q. Okay. Could you turn that over to the court ;
4 district judge's derk? 4 reporter so she can mark that, please, sir? .
5 A. No. 5 A. (Witness complies.)
6 Q. Did you notify anybody? 6 (Exhibit No. 14 marked.)
7 A. No. 7 Q. (BYMR. GIBSON) And what is the exhibit number, #
B8 Q. But you knew that Mr, Zirus had, in fact, 8 sir? i
9 requested counsel at the appearance before the 9 A. 14, ;
10 magistrate at 12:40 p.m., correct? 10 Q. Can you identify that document for the court, i
11 A, Idid not know that. 11 please? R
12 Q. Well, take a look at the — at the form that 12 A. Yeah. It's Kerr County Sheriff's Office :
13 you've identified again. What exhibit is that? 13 Miranda warning and waiver form.
14 A 12--13. 14 Q. And what is the date and time of that form" f
15 Q. All right, sir. Have you actually — have you 15 A. August 20, 2009 at 2:05 p.m. "k
16 ever read this form before this moment'-‘ 16 Q. When you presented this form to Mr. Zirus for r
17 A. Yes, 17 signature, did you discuss with him what the status was - [
18 Q. When? 18 of getling his appointed counsel?
|19 A. Ican't give you the exact date and time I read 19 A. Iread him this form.
20 it. 20 MR. GIBSON: Objection, nonresponsive.
121 Q. Okay. Well, take a look down there at the 21 Q. (BY MR. GIBSON) Did you discuss with Mr. Zirus
22 last — you'll see down at the bottom there it says, 22 the status of his request for appointed counsel at the
123 you're remanded without bond or bond is set. You see | 23 time you presented this exhibit to him for sighature? ;
24 that part? 24 A. His status? - -
25 A. Yes. 25 Q. Yeah. :
Page 75 Page 77
1 Q. Take a look at the sentences before that. 1 A. Explain that.
2 Could you read that to the — to the court? 2 Q. What was being done to get him appounted
3 A. The magistrate asked whether the person wants 3 counsel that he requested?
4 to request appointed counsel. The accused doeswantto | 4 A. 1read him this form.
5 request appoirited counsel. : 5 Q. And that's all you did? ;-;
6 Q. So he did request appointed counsel at that 6 A. Yes, [
7 interview with the magistrate, correct? 7 Q. Okay. Now — so it's true-that you did not :
8 A. With the magistrate, yes. 8 discuss with Mr. Zirus what, if anything, was being
9 Q. Okay. Did the authorities take any action to 9 done to obtain appointed counsel for him that he had i
10 obtain appointed counsel for Mr. Zirus before you began | 10 requested before the magistrabe before you began the f
11 the interview process that day? 11 interview? - - §
12 A. No, 12 A. True. 1
13 Q. So basically Mr. Ziris at the hearing before 13 Q. Now, if you'll look at the language on the form 8
14 the magistrate had requested counsel, but essentially |14 under the area of walver it says, do you understand  §
is nothing was dcne to obtain’ oounsel before the interview | 15 each of these rights I have read to yYou, correct? F
16 began, correct? ‘ 16 A. True.
17 A. He did not request counsel with me. 17 Q. Andit's got an Inttiai there — : ;‘
18 Q. He did request counsel to the magistrate, 18 A. True. LIS '
19 right? 19 Q. - corect?
20 A. True. 20 A. Yes. ',
21 Q. And nothing was done to obtain counsel for 21 Q. And Mr. erus initizled that I - 1 presume?
22 Mr. Zirus before the interview process began, correct? 22 - A. Yes, .
23 A, True. 23 Q. Okay. Does that mean he does or does not
24 Q. I believe that there's ancther Miranda 24 understand it?
25 statement in your file that's dated at 1405. Can you 25 A. The question is, do you understand each of R
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1 these rights I have read to you? He put his initial 1 Q. Just for the record, it is true he did nat have -
2 next to them, sa I would say he understood. 2 counsel at the time of the interview, correct?
3 Q. Well, does — I don't mean to quibble with you, 3 A. True. L .
4 but the form speaks for itself, but specifically the 4 T
5 form does not say whether he understood them or not. 5
6 It just says he's initialed that statement. 6
7 A. It says, do you understand. 7
8 Q. Yeah. And - 8
9 A. He put his initials, so 1 would say he 9
10 understood. 10
11 Q. Does that mean yes or no when he initials it? 11
12 A. 1 would say yes, 12
13 Q. Okay. How did he understand it? 13
14 A. Have to ask him. 14
15 Q. AsIunderstand the file, you did at some point 15
16 contact the Australian consul? 16
17 A. Yes. ; i7
18 Q. When did you do that, sir? 18
19 A. 1 believe the day he was arrested, that day. 19
20 We called them and left a message on their phone. 20
21 Q. Was that before or after the interview process? 21
22 A. After. 22
23 Q. Did you understand at the time you began the 23
24 interview process with Mr. Zirus that the sixth 24
25 amendment of the United States Constitution guarantees | 25
Page79 - — Page 81
1 the defendant the right to have counsel present at all 1 '
2 credible stages of the criminal proceedings against him 2
3 including interrogation? 3
4 A. Requires? 4
5 Q. Yes, sir. 5
6 A. I'm unknown to that. 6
7 Q. Is it fair to say that you -- in your interview 7
8 of Mr. Zirus that you basically ignored the request for 8
9 appointed counsel as shown in the magistrate report? | 9
10 A. No. 10
11 Q. What did you do then? 11
12 A. I read him the form, which is the standard 12
13 operating procedure of our department. i3
14 Q. But since you had just — you just kept the 14
15 form in your file, really there was nothing anybody was 15 .
16 ever going to do at that point to get him appointed 16
17 counsel because the people that needed to know didn't | 17
ig know he requested it, correct? 18
19 MR. SAWICKI: Objection, form. 19
20 A. I can't answer that question. 20
21 Q. How are appointed counsel appointed in 21
22 Kerrville? 22
23 A. Idon't know. 23
- |24 Q. Who appoints them? 24
7125 A. 1 don't know who appoeints them. 25 :
' £
: : e
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FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY

Chronology — 14/04/2019 11:29:57 PM

Created by James Hazell {WH)

Summary:

WH639794L - On 14 April 2010 Mr Zirus confirmed that he would not accept the plea bargain offered
by the prosecution as it would require him to plead guilty as charged. Mr Zirus advised that he is
scheduled to appear at a pretrial hearing on Friday 16 April 2010 and then at the trial on 27 April 2010.
We would be grateful if ConOps would please notify Ms Flemming of the above information.

Details:
On 14 April 2010 consular officer (Hazelly arranged for Mr Zirus to be brought to a telephone.

2. Mr Zirus confirmed that he would not accept the plea bargain offered by the prosecuticn as it would
require him to plead guilty as charged. Mr Zirus stated that he had discussed in depth his plea bargain
with his public defenders on Thursday 8 April 2010 and it was decided that they would submit » nles n#
500 Sl 16 the wourt o G, il

3. Mr Zirus advised that he 15 scheduled to appear &l a pretrial hearing on Friday 16 April 2010 and
then at the trial on 27 April 2010. :

4. Mr Zirus stated that he provided his public defenders with statements describing the situation which
surrounded the incidents in question and a further statement relating to when he provided a writter
statement to the Kerr County Sheriff's office.

5. Mr Zirus indicated that he was extremely stressed but otherwise copping well.

6. Mr Zirus stated that he had written letters to 60 Minutes Australia and a number of Western
Australian newspapers clarifying their reports on his case.

7. CO Hazell advised Mr Zirus of the correspondence from Ms Shonagh Bradstock. Mr Zirus stated
that he did not consent for information to be passed to Ms Bradstock but requested that she be referred
to his foster mother, Ms Linda F lemming. Mr Zirus did clarify that Ms Bradstock was assisting the
investigator whom his public defenders had obtained and requested that the investigators contact details
be passed to her.

8. CO Hazell telephoned and Jeft a message for Mr Clay Steadman, Mr Zirns' public defender,
requesting that he provide the contact information for the investigator 5o their details may be passed to
Ms Bradstock.

9. We would be grateful if ConOps would plense notify Ms Flemming of the above information,

ONCE CLEARED TPS SHOULD BE EMAILED TO RELEVANT MEDIA AND POLICY

ADVISERS IN THE MINISTER&’QEE[CES_ANDL[D_U{EMEDIA LIAISON SECTION (-M-MLS-
Talking_Points) DFAT - DECLASSIFIED |

Case: 1111-F247 {
Copy issued under the FO) Act X
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CUNDULAR-IN-CUNHUENUE 50
Printed by's 22(1)(a)(ii}- 08:56 AM Tuesday, 20 April 2010

) WH639822L

T i CONSULAR: CAT 1: ARREST: ZIRUS, Scott Ash James

MRN: WH639822[. 19/04/2010 02:06:51 PM EDT

To: Canberra

Ce:

From: Washington

From File:

References: CE628175L, CE628174L

Response: Routine, Requires Action _ _
MR O CONST AR I L ONF IR G e

“+++ Personal hl-f;rn.mﬁon ahout individuals contained in this cable should not be disclosed unless
authorised under the Privacy Act 1988 (Cth). Any unauthorised disclosure of personal information thay
censtituie a brebch of the Privacy Act 1988 {Cth) +H+

Commenis; S
To: CHCH/DFAT/CPD/CNB/CEC/s. 22(1a)(i) |
- Forwarded by CHCH/DFAT/CPD/CPB/Mauro Kolobaric -
Tony -
can you please arrange for NOK to be updated - however, we need fo advise NOk that once
we ascertain where A/N will serve his prison sentence, arrangements will need to be put in
place for NOK to correspond direct with A/N., and vice-versa,
We need post to provide these details please
thanks
Mairo
Susamary

On 19 April 2010 Mr Zirus confirmed that he accepted a plea-bargain on Friday 16 April
2010 which would require him to serve a 40 Yyear sentence. We would be gratefual if ConOps
would please notify Mr Zirus' next-of-kin of the contents of the cable.

~ On 19 April 2010 consular officer (Hazell) arranged for Mr Zirus to be granted access to a
telephone to receive a call from the Embassy.

2. Mr Zirus confirmed that he accepted a plea bargain on Friday 16 April 2010 which would
require him to serve a sentence of 40 years. Mr Zirus indicated that he understood that in
accepting the plea bargain he was pleading guilty to class 3 aggravated felony offences which
would require him to serve a minirnum of 50 percent of the sentence prior to being eligible

for parole,

3. Mr Zirus stated that his plea bargain was awaiting approval from the J udge, however, he
upd?rstqod that the Judge would be speaking with the parents of those minors identified as
victims in the case prior to approving it.

4. Mr Zirus stated that he had decided to accept the plea bargain after discyssi ith his
public defenders. Mr Zirus advised that jt was their understandin é'm;“;'ﬁ%
1Xely succeed in finding him guilty on at least 1 count and that there was a possibility of him
bemg found guilty or multiple counts if not all, which would see him serve up to 100 years.
Mr Zirus advised that his public defenders believed that if found guilty of multiple counts
that he would receive consecutive sentences as this was the outcome of a recent case which

Cc ENCE

DFAT - DECLASSIFIED .
Case: 1111-F247 ‘

Crnv icciiad undar tha O Ant -

Page 1 of 2
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Printed by Tony Feeney - 08:56 AM Tuesday, 20 April 2010 31

WH6E398221
We 21y similar to his.

5. Mr Zirus advised that the District Attorney had verbally agreed to'support his International
Transfer of Prisoner Application (ITP). CO Hazell advised Mr Zirus that documentation
relating to the ITP would be forwarded to him, however, he could not submit the application
until he was situated at the facility where he would serve his sentence,

6. Mr Zirus stated that he was fine, however, was disappointed in himself for agreeing to the
plea bargain as it saw him being required to plead guilty. Mr Zirus said that he had written a
number of letters to his foster mother and friends mainly to explain the reasons for his
accepting the plea bargain. :

7. CO Hazell advised Administrator$- 476 |Kerr County Jail, that there was a
possibility that Mr Zirus' next-of-kin may visit hirn in the near future. Administrator S.47F.
advised that if Mr Zirus' next-of-kin travelled to the US to visit him that their policy allowed
for him to receive extended visiting hours due to the circumstances.

8. Admjnistraior,ifgi_fadﬁsed that she umderstood that Mr Zirus would not be transferred
from Kerr County Jail until mid May at the earliest.

9. We would be grateful if Ms Linda Flemming, Mr Zirus' foster mother, be advised of the
above information.

text ends
Sent by: James Hazcil
Prepared by: James Hazell
Approved by:
Topics: CONSULAR/Case Management

Canberra distribution

To: DFAT CPD Crisis Cntr, AS-CNB, CNB, CEC, AS-CPB, CPB
Cc:  DFAT EXEC Secretary, Dep Sec Thomas, DepSec Bird, Dep Sec Kupa
CPD FAS-CPD
Ce:  0QOGOs PARLHSE Foreign Minister, Foreign Min Advisers, Foreign Min's
Office

CDFAT - DECLASSIFIED ENCE

Case: 1111-F247
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FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY

Chronology - 19/04/2010 11:50:43 PM

Created by James Hazell (WH)

Summary:

WHG39322L - On 19 April 2010 Mr Zirus confirmed that he accepted a plea bargain on Friday 16
April 2010 which would require him (o serve a 40 year sentence. We would be grateful if ConOps
would please notify Mr Zirus' next-of-kin of the contents of the cable,

Details:

On 19 April 2010 consuliy officer (lasell) ananged for M Zinus o be granied access w a telgphone (o

receive a call from the Embassy.

2. Mr Zirus confirmed that he accepted a plea bargain on Friday 16 April 2010 which would require
him to serve a sentence of 40 years. Mr Zirus indicated that be understood that In accepting the plea
bargain he was pleading guilty to class 3 aggravated felony offences which would require him to serve
a minimum of 50 percent of the sentence prior to being eligible for parole.

3. Mr Zirus stated that his plea bargain was aweiting appraval from the Judge, howaver, he understood
that the Judge would be speaking with the parents of those minors identified as victims in the case prior

to approving it.

4. Mr Zirus stated that he had decided to accept the plea bargain after discussions with his public
defenders. Mr Zirus advised that it was their understanding that the prosecution would likely succeed in
finding him guilty on at least I count and that there was a possibility of him being found guilty on
multiple counts if not all, which would see him serve up to 100 years. Mr Zirus advised that his public
defenders believed that if found guilty of multiple coums that he would receive consecutive sentences
as this was the outcome of a recent case which was very similar to his.

5. Mr Zirus advised that the District Attomey had verbally agreed 1o support his International Transfer
‘of Prisoner Application (ITP). CO Hazell advised Mr Zirus that documentation relating to the ITP
would be forwarded to him, however, he could not submit the application until he was sitvated at the
Tacility where he would serve his sentence,

6. Mr Zirus stated that he was fine, however, was disappointed in himself for agreeing 10 (he plea

bargain as it saw him being required to plead guilty. Mr Zirus said that he had written a mumber of
letters to his foster mother and friends mainly to explain the reasons for his accepting the plea bargain.

here was & possibility that
advised that if Mr Zirus'

next-of-kin travelled-to the US to visit him that their policy allowed for him to receive extended

visiting hours due to the circumstances. o

8. Administratog, 47F] hdvised that she understood that Mr Zirus would not be transferred from Keer

County Jail until mid May at the earliest.

9. We would be grateful if Ms Linda Flemming, Mr Zirus' foster moﬁu, be advised of the above
information.

ONCE CLEARED TPS SHOULD BE EMAILED TO RELEVANT MEDIA AND POLICY
ADVISERS IN THE MINISTERS? A LIAISON SECTION (-M-MLS-
Talking Points) AT - DECLASSIFIED

se: 1111-F247
py issued under the FO! Act
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Chronology — 28/04/2010 04:28:22 AM

Created by James Hazell (WH)

Summary:

WH639887L - On 27 April 2010 Mr Zirus advised that he appeared in court for finaj sentencing and
the reading of the Impact Statements by the victims families. Mr Zirus stated that the Judge agreed to
the plea bargain which would see him being found guilty of 4 charges with a concurrent sentence of 40
years, Mr Zirus stated that there was media presence at his hearing, We would be grateful if ConOps

would please update the talking points.

Details:

On 27 April 2010 consular officer (Hazell) telephoned the Kerr County Jail and amranged for Mr Zirus

to be brought to a telephone.

2, Mr Zirus advised that he appeared in Kerr County Court today, 27 April 2010, for final sentencing
and the reading of the Impact Statements by the victims families, Mr Zirus stafed that the Judge sgreed

to the pica bargain which would see him being found guilty of 4 charges (2 counts of Aggravated
Sexual Assault child, 1 count of Sexual Abuse of Child Continuous - Victim Under the age of 14, and |
count of Indecency with a Child Sexusl Contact), Mr Zirus stated that the plea bargain consisted of him

serving concurrent sentences of a total of 40 years, with parole being possible after 20 years
incarceration. .
3. Mr Zirus stated that he thought he was coping better than expected with his sentencing proceedings.

4. CO Hazeil advised Mr Zirus that the Embassy would forward him the Internationa] Transfer of
Prisoner application documentation once he was located at his designated facility. Mr Zirus indicated
that he understood from discussions with the facility staff that he would remain at the Kerr County Jail

until mid May 2019.

5. Mr Zirus stated that there was media presence at his hearing. We would be grateful if ConOps would
please update the talking points. ' : ' ’

6. We would also be grateful if ConOps would please notify Ms Linda Flemming of the above,

ONCE CLEARED TPS SHOULD BE EMAILED TO RELEVANT MEDIA AND POLICY
ADVISERS IN THE MINISTERS' OFFICES AND TO THE MEDIA LIAISON SECTION (-M-MLS-
Talking_Points) DFAT - DECLASSIFIED
ase: 1111-F247
opy issued under the FOI Act .
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Law Offices of JESKO & STEADMAN

Elizabeth J. Jesko 612 Ear! Garrett Street
Clay B. Steadman Kerrville, Texas 78028

Telephone No. (830) 257-5005
Facsimile No. (830) 896-1563

July 10, 2017

Via Hand Delivery

Honorable M. Rex Emerson

198" Judicial District Court A =Y

Kerr County Courthouse ROSEIN BURLEW
Kerrville, Texas 78029 Disirict Clark, Kew Ceunty, TX
Ry Deruly
Re:  Cause No. B09-490; B09-552; B09-553 ’
State of Texas vs. Scott Ash James Zirus O

In the 198" Judicial District Court of Kerr County, Texas
Dear Judge Emerson:

As per the Court’s e-mail request, dated this date, ] am enclosing the following documents
regarding the plea offer concerning Scott Ash James Zirus and his then pending felony criminatl
cases:

1. Rejection of Plea Offer; and
2. Correspondence sent to Scott Ash James Zirus, dated August 26, 2013.

With regards to the Rejection of Plea Offer signed by Mr. Zirus, a copy of this document was
sent to him along with several other documents as listed in the correspondence my office mailed to
Mr. Zirus on August 26, 2013. The Rejection of Plea Offer is listed as number #9 on said
correspondence.

As [ explained to Mr. Zirus and the Court, I was not lead counsel on these cases, but was
court appointed to assist Mr. Patterson regarding these matters. Ido not recall ever discussing parole
eligibility and release, with Mr. Zirus prior to the entry of his plea on April 16, 2010. In my review
of the transcript of his plea hearing, I was very detailed on certain issues raised in connection to the
plea proceedings, however, there was no mention regarding Mr. Zirus’ parole eligibility. While I
do not recall speaking with Mr. Zirus regarding parole eligibility and release, I cannot speak to what
Mr. Patierson and Mr. Zirus might have discussed when I was not present.

If you require additional documents, or any other information, or I need to provide an
affidavit regarding same, please advise and I will prepare and forward same to you as soon as
practicably possible.

FILED r\\\a\ 20-\:‘




Honorable M. Rex Emerson
July 10, 2017
Page 2

Should you have any questions or comments, please do not hesitate to contact my office.

Very tlzl yours,

Clay B. Steadman

CBS/dkg
Enclosures

cc: 12-3373
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@ap

Publisher: AAP NewsWire
Publication: aap International News (Fri 30 Apr 2010 8:52:10 AM)

Edition; Bath Cycles

US: THE SECRET LIFE OF SCOTT ZIRUS AND HOW HE PREYED
UPON TEXAN CHILDREN

By Peter Mitchall '

KERRVILLE, Texas, April 28 AAP - Located among serene cyprass trees and the
Guadalupe River in the storfed Hilt Country of Texas, Camp Stewart for Boys has been
the site of a plcture-perfect rite of Passage for generations of American youngsters,
The camp was founded N 1924 and is open to boys aged six to 16,

It is often the first time boys sleep away from home, kissing and hugging their parents
goodbye and embarking on a three-week adventure where activitles include canoeing,
archery, wall climbing and rifle shooting,

Grandfathers who visited tha €amp as young boys swap their experiences with their
sons and grandsons who also spent their summers at the camp.

The proud history of Camp Stewart for Boys, however, was tarnished last August after
five parents arrived to pick up thelr six and seven-year-olds and noticed dramatic
personallty changes in the boys.

"Our sgn hardly talked to us,” the mother of a seven-year-old boy, who will not be
identifled to protect her son's identity, told AAP,

"He was very standoffish."

The boy eventually revealed to his parents a story so horrifying they Initially thought he
made it up.

“My son was the first one to come out,” his father said.
"Unfortunately we didn't believe jt.
"He told us Scott had touched his penis."

Scott Zirus, arrived at Camp Stewart for Boys, about an hour's drive north of the Texas
city of San Antonio and outside the rural town of Kerrville, with an impeccable resume,

The 26-year-old camp counsellor from Pinjarra, Western Australia, had run his own
children's camp back in Australia, Grassroots Adventures, was a lover of the outdoors,
tald tales about the outback and played a didgeridoo,

"Our son thought the world of Scott," the mother of 2 six-year-old victim said,

What Camp Stewart and the parents did not know was Zirus was a pedophile who set
Out to groom the young beys and gain their trust.

He taught them to play the didgeridoo and to perform an Aboriginai "kangaroo hunt"
dance,

He would be their friend,

DFAT - DECLASSIFIED
Case: 1111-F247 !
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"Our son told us how Scott wouldn't make him eat things he didn't like and how he'd let
him eat cookies,” a mother of a seven-vear-old victim said.

"Now we know Scott wanted him to like him and he wag greoming the kids.
"He was taking advantage of six or seven-year-aolds.”

Just as he tricked the proprietors of Camp Stewart for Boys, Zirus also fooled the
parents on the opering day of the camp.

The parents of a seven-year-old camp attendes recalled a leng, warm chat with Zirus
when they dropped their son off at the camp.

"We spoke to him for over an hour,” the boy's maother sald.

"Scott told us how he was golng to teach our son how to tie his shoes and how he would
be a really caring counselior for him.,*

What 2Irus didn't reveal to camp administrators were his blzarre views on life, including
his self-proclaimed role as leader of the Shadoran movement. While he kept it secret
fram his Texan employer, a few minutes research on the internet revealed Zltus's
views, including blogs linked to his MySpace page where, under the name "shadowsaj",
he announced it was "a fact that elght out of 10 boys are bisexual but only two out of
these eight will aver admit it",

*I am a Shadoran and we have a spacial 'sexuality’ called "neitia® this ‘sexuality’ Is
unigue because It has no boundries {sic}," Zirus wrote on the MySpace blog.

"You are open to love from ANY age, réca or gender ... I wiil love whom ever I love."

In another posting, Zirus attempted to expiain hls philosophy, declaring that molesters
"are sick and wrong", but there is a difference between people who find children
"sexually attractive® and "molesters”,

After the first boy revealed the assaults to his parents, Kerr County sheriffs launched an
investigation. On August 20 last year, with Zirus at San Antonio airpart preparing to
leave Texas, he wag arrested and charged with aggravated sexual assault of a child,
fndecency with a child and continuous sexual abuse of a child under 14 relating to three

bays

Five boys eventually came forward alleging they had been abused by 2irus and Kerr
County District Attormey Amos Barton announced his desire to pursue the maximum
penalty against the Australian - life in the Texas prison system,

Mr Barton used Zirus's internet rants as a Key part of the case and with Zirus refused
ball and held in the sax offenders unit at Kerr County fail ahead of his trial, avtharities
monitored his comimunications,

They discovered Zirus continued to reach out to athers in the Shadoran movement.

"Itisa philosophy that espouses a love for children that can Include sexuat love,” Mr
Barton said.

The district attorney said Zirus had confessed to one of the offences in interviews with
authoritles and believed Zirus created the Shadoran movement as a way to hide the
fact he was a pedophile,

“If he Puts It within a framework and gives it a title, then that somehow authorises him
or justifies him in being miswired and offending smal; children,® Mr Barton explained.

Zirus, despite hig confession, appeared Intent to fight the charges In court, but when a
cellmate charged with unrelated sex offences was sentenced te 119 years jail after
fosing his trial, Zirug surprised prosecutors and his own lawyer, James Patterson, by
deciding to accept a plea deal.

The deal was 40 years' imprisonment, with the possibliity of parole after 20 years.

On Tuesday (April 27), after the parents of four of the victims used an open forum fn
thg Kerr County District Court to teil Zirus the pain and devastation he had caused their .
children, Judge Melvin "Rex" Emerson confirmed the plea deal and sentenced Zirus to

DFAT - DECLASSIFIED .
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the 40 years.

Mr Barton said it would he up to the Texas Board of Pardons and Paroles to decide if
Zirus would be released after 20 years, but it was unlikely due to the "egregiocusness® of
the ctimes and the fact there are multiple victims,

After the Texas charges wera faid an investigation was launched In Western Australia
resulting in four children cleiming they were sexually abused by Zirus.

“No I wasn't surprised,” Mr Barton sald of the Australian chargas.

“Given the nature of the outcry, given the nature of the confession, there's usually a
progression a sex offender goes through that we see.

“There's 3 grooming process. There's a graduatfon to these types of offences.”

What helped Zirus groom and then take advantage of the boys were the living
arrangements at the camp, with Zirus and another counsellor sieeping In a cabin with
the youngsters,

A grandmother of a seven-year-old victim said her grandson was assigned to a bunk
above Zirus.

"The cabin was in ap 'L shape, so while there were others In the cabin, they could not
see around the corner," the grandmother said.

The mother of 2 seven-year-old victim was sickened to hear what Zirus did to her son,

"Our son said 'He'd snuggle me In bed and rub his beard against me even though 1
didn't want him to and he told me he laved me'," the mother said,

All five boys are undergoing counselling and may have to continue the sessions for
many years (o come, with same of the boys exhibiting anxiety, fear of strangers and
public p/aces, One of the boys was a gifted student before going to the camp, hut after
being abused by Zirus he has bacome a shadow of himself, suffers from horrific
nightmares ard has tatked about dying.

"He has sald he wished he weren't alive and wished he could g0 to sleep and never
wake up,"” the six-year-old's mother wrote in a victim's impact statement.

Zirus may have taken the 40-year plea deal with the hape of gaining release in 20
years, but the families say they will be present if he fronts the parole board in 2030 to
ensure he does not win release and can't hurt another child.

"We'll be at the parola hearing,” a seven-year-old victims’ mother said.

AAP pm/it/apm

Copyright @ AAP NewsWire, 2010
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Brad Boozer
Page 1 :
1 IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS
2 SAN ANTONIO DIVISION
3 M.B., AS NEXT FRIEND OF )
J.B., A MINOR, )
4 Plaintiffs )
)
5 )
VS. ) NO. 5:12-cv-1133
6 )
CAMP STEWART FOR BOYS, )
7 INC., AMERICAN INSTITUTE )
FOR FOREIGN STUDY, INC. }
8 D/B/A CAMP AMERICA AND )
SCOTT ASH JAMES ZIRUS, )
9 Defendants )
10 *******************************************************
11 ORAI, DEPOSITION OF
12 BRAD BCOZER
13 AUGUST 7, 2013
14 *******************************************************
15 ORAL DEPOSITION OF BRAD BOOZER, produced as a
16 witness at the instance of the Defendant Camp Stewart
17 for Boys, Inc., and duly sworn, was taken in the
18 above-styled and numbered cause on August 7, 2013, from
19 9:56 a.m. to 12:25 p.m., before Christi Sanford, CSR in
20 and for the State of Texas, Registered Professional
21 Reporter and Certified Realtime Reporter, reported by
22 machine shorthand, at the offices of Harrison, Davis,
23 Steakley, Morrison, PpC, 5 Ritchie Road, Waco, Texas,
24 pursuant to the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and the
25 provisions stated on the record.
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645 Lockhill Selma, Suite 200
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Brad Boozer
Page 2 Page 4 E
1 APPEARANCES 1 (All parties present have hereby waived the necessity of
2 For the Plainkifr: 2 the reading of the statements by the court reporter as
3 Mr. Zollie C. Steakley . .
S Racnie Road e Moo PO 3 require by Rule 30(b}(5))
! ggmgno: 21387 4 BRAD BOOQZER, _
’ g?i’?ﬁé'ég?:m 5 having been first duly sworn, testified as follows:
- ax
H Fa,‘i”ogfgnmamp Stewart or Boys, Inc. g N— EXAMINATION
-] Mr. Ral ) . . : ,
3 gﬁgahﬁﬁ?&?‘:%m " 8 Q. State your full name for the record. |
0 o s 9 A. Michael Bradley Boozer. :
1 ﬁi;‘iléﬁ::i?;n 10 Q. Mr. Boozer, my name is Ralph Lopez. I know 1
12 For the Defendant m,neﬁ:;." Institute for Foreign Study, 11 that you and I just met a minute ago. 1am a lawyer for |
p A ' 12 Camp Stewart for Boys, Inc., who is one of the parties ]
14 ggnﬁ';ﬁogﬁ:m & ol PC 13 that your wife has sue:;d on behaif of your son. Do you _.
15 Houston, Texas 77055 ' i; Uniersfi"and v;-ho I am? %
(713) 626-1 . Yes, sir. §
° f(:!alg)@ﬁfjﬁasfch 16 Q. There are cther lawyers here today. One, of :
v For the Defendant Scott Ash James Zinus: 17 course,, ifstyour ﬁwn lawL\ger desflendina you. Jeqsr;d ttshi L\;voman:
b i i 18 to my left over here is Laura ay, who represen r
r. elephonically’ . ) -
19 :unﬁtrtys?' Gﬁlfén"."&.io = 19 co-defendants, America's Institute for Foreign Studies :
20 ;gnNEnLtgz'f: %ﬂ;f:ﬁ:m 20 doing business as Camp America. Do you understand who |
2n (00 21 sheis? }.
» gibsonj@plunkett-gibsan.com 22 A, YES, sir. g
Also Present: 23 Q. And on the telephone representing a man named :
z Ms. Debra Brown 24 Scott James Ash Zirus is Jerry Gibson, a lawyer from g
N 25 San Antonio. All right?
Page 3 Page 5 :
1 INDEX 1 A, Gotit. '
2 PAGE 2 Q. We're gaing to be asking you some questions
Appearances 2 3 today about a rpatter that I knoy\.r is very important to‘ .
3 4 you and your wife and your family and may be upsetting |
4 WITNESS: BRAD BOOZER 5 sometimes because of the facts it inquires into. Do you
Examination by Mr. Lopez 4 6 understand that? . ¢
5 Examination by Ms. Slay 98 7 A. Most deﬂn|te|y_ i
Examf"a’.j°“ﬁby :’:’ ‘MGibig” 111112 8 Q. Okay. I want you to understand this, too. §
° Eiﬁi:ﬂfﬂzt.gﬁ b‘: M;: Slap; : 118 9 We're going to be asking a number of questions to try to |
7 Further Examination by Mr. Lopez 121 10 draw out as much information from ¥ou as we can to
8 Signaturr? aéwd rtf'r!:w;ges 128126 11 inform, I guess, principally, the jurors who will sit in
g Reporter's Certifcate 12 this case, but also othar lawyers who are considering _
10 EXHIBITS 13 this case and even insurance adjusters who are involved |
11 IBITS WERE MARKED 14 in making decisions relevant to this case. Do you
12 (O ExH ) 15 understand that?
13 i6 A. Ido.
14 17 Q. Because of that, we're going to be asking some
}2 18 questions that sometimes will be apparent what the
17 19 reason is, but sometimes it won't be so apparent, and I |
18 20 want to ask you to just bear with me and be patient with
33 21 me as we go through this process. It'll be over with in
21 22 just a couple of hours. Okay?
22 23 A Gotit.
23 24 Q. IfI ask any question that you don't
24 q .
25 25 understand, don't answer the question. Ask me to

Kim Tindall and Associates, LLC
210-697-3400
Electronicaily signed by Christi Sanford {401-182-026-5730)

645 Lockhill Selma, Suite 200

2 (Pages 2 to 5)
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Page 6 Page 8 |
1 rephrase the question. Can we agree to that? 1 handle?
2 A. Ican. 2 A, Correct. ,
3 Q. Likewise, I and the other lawyers will press 3 Q. You and other employees, I guess?
4 you for darification of your answer if you give an 4 A. Correct. '
5 answer that we don't quite understand, Okay? 5 Q. Are you the boss? _
6 A. Gotit. 6 A. Imean, I pretty much run the day-to-day :
7 Q. What is your date of birth, sir? 7 operations. o
8 A. 12/31/68. 8 Q. Okay. How long have you been married?
9 Q. How old are you, then? g A. Fifteen years two weeks ago. ' ;
10 A 44, 10 Q. And you and Mrs. Boozer have two children, to
11 Q. What line of work are you in? 11 my understanding; is that right?
i2 A. I'min the jewelry business. 12 A. Yes. . ‘
13 Q. How long have you been in the jewelry business? | 13 Q. Who are your two children and what are their
14 A. 91, My family's been in it since 1968. I 14 ages? _
15 came back from playing football in 1991 and got into 15 A. John Jack Boozer is 12 and Jake Boozer is now
16 business with them. 16 10.
17 Q. Okay. And what is the name of this business? 17 Q. Okay. What's your education? Before you got
18 A. Boozer's Premier Diamonds and Time Pieces. 18 into the jewelry business, what extent of education did __
19 Q. Where is it located? 19 you have? ‘:
20 A. Valley Mills Drive. 20 A. Twent to college at Louisiana Tech and went to
21 Q. In what city? 21 high school at Robinson High School here. And that's
22 A. In Waco, Texas. 22 about it. 3
23 Q. Is there only one location or is there more 23 Q. What year did you graduate coliege? :
24 than one location? 24 A. Thave not actually graduated. I'm six hours :
25 A. Justone. 25 from graduation. I was six hours short and then [
Page 7 : Page 9 |
i Q. Are you the owner of that business or just an 1 signed a contract with the Philadelphia Eagles to go
2  employee? 2 play football, and I just have never got those last six :
3 A. My wife is actually the owner of the business, 3  hours. !
4 and I work for my wife, 4 {Discussion off the record) [
5 Q. Your wife is Meredith Boozer; is that correct? 5 Q. Well, that's pretty cool, How long did you
6 A. Yaes, sir, 6 play for the Fagles?
7 Q. Allright. And your wife, as I understand it, 7 A, Iwas only there a brief time. I piayed in
8 is actually a colleague of mine and My associate's here, 8 five of the pre-season games.
9 She's a lawyer; isn't that right? 9 Q. What position?
10 A. Unfortunately, yes. 10 A. Punter,
11 Q. Well, she's, I think, licensed in the state of 11 Q. Did you ever play the Dallas Cowboys?
12 Texas and actually practices law, to some extent; isn't 12 A. 1did not,
13 that right? 13 Q. Allright. And I guess you played college
14 A, Yes. 14 football, too; is that right?
15 Q. Allright. Since the family business was your 15 A. Yes, at Louisiana Tech.
16 family business, why does she own the business? 16 Q. Okay. You did mention that.
17 A. Well, my family got out of the business and 17 We're here today concerning allegations
18 retired. And then when we opened the new business, for | 18 about things that we are told happened to your son at
19 borrowing money and getting the business started, she 19 Camp Stewart in the year 2009 and then later in the year
20 had -- it was kind of all in her court, 20 2012; is that correct?
21 Q. Okay. Does she actually work for the businass 21 A. That is correct,
22 like you do or does she -- 22 Q. Allright. Now, you and your wife don't
23 A. No. She does not work day-to-day operations. 23 actually have firsthand knowledge? And by that, you're
24 Q. Okay. So she's the owner in name, but the 24 not eyewitnesses to anything that happened to yOur san
25 day-to-day operations are something that you actually 25 at the camp; is that correct?
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Brad Boozer
Page 94 Page 96 |

1 this: If you'd focus on -- if you'd consider for a 1 hasn't missed a beat.. Famp Stevyart hasn't .mlssed a
2 moment the comparative responsibility between Scott 2 beat. You guys are living and going and doing.

3 Zirus, Camp America and Camp Stewart, are you telling us 3 Y'all keep those people out of our camps.

4 that you regard Camp America and Camp Stewarttobemore | 4 You keep those people out of th-e country. You did not ;

5 responsible for what Scott Zirus did -- 5 do your job 100 percent. The kid sh?uid .have never been ;
6 MR. STEAKLEY: Ohjection, form. & here. I'm not giving him a walk. He's doing 20 years :

7 A. 100 percent. 7 in prison. You put Camp Stewart and_ the three of those

8 Q. (BY MR. LOPEZ) Let me finish. -- than Scott 8 in jail for 20 years, I'll drop the Iawsmt.tod.ay.

9  Zirus himseif? 9 Q. Well, are you asking for that relief in your
10 MR. STEAKLEY: Objection, form. 10 lawsuit? ;
11 A, 100 percent. 11 MR. STEAKLEY: Objection, form. s
12 Q. (BY MR. LOPEZ) Who 100 percent? 12 A. No, because you can't -- I don't think you can )
13 A. Camp America and Camp Stewart are the first 13 ask for jail time.

14 lines of defenses to keep that guy out of the -- out of 14 Q. (BY MR. LOPEZ) The only thing you're asking
15 the presence of young children. ' 15 for in your lawsuit is money.
16 Q. Do you think Scott Zirus has any responsibility 16 MR. STEAKLEY: Objection, form,

17 for what he did to your son? 17 Q. (BY MR. LOPEZ) Are you aware of that?

18 MR. STEAKLEY: Objection, form. 18 A. If that impedes them and keeps them from keep :
15 A. He's'definitely - he's definitely got 19 doing their business and that's the way the system i
20 responsibility. 20 works, then that's the way the system works. ;
21 Q. (BY MR. LOPEZ) What percentage? If it's 21 MS. SLAY: Objection, nonresponsive. :
22 100 percent Camp America and Camp Stewart, are you 22 Q. (BY MR. LOPEZ) All right. So what amount of :
23 suggesting to the jury that, in your mind, Scott Zirus 23 money do you think would be, in total, fair compensation
24 has no responsibility for that action? 24 for what happened to your son involving Scott Zirus? :
25 MR. STEAKLEY: Objection, form. 25 MR. STEAKLEY: Objection, form. 3

Page 95 Page 97 |

1 A. He never should have been there. 1 A. Tdon't have a number.

2 Q. (BY MR, LOPEZ) So what degree of 2 Q. (BY MR. LOPEZ) Would you be content with

3 responsibility does he have? He was there and he did 3 whatever the jury decides?

4 what he did. 4 A, Yes.

5 MR. STEAKLEY: Objection, form. S Q. How about with regard to Dan Scothern? What

6 Q. (BY MR. LOPEZ) What degree of responsibility 6 amount of money do you seek as fair compensation for

7 do you believe Scott Zirus has for what happened to your | 7 what you say Dan Scothern did to your son?

8 son? 8 MR, STEAKLEY: Objection, form.

9 MR. STEAKLEY: Form. 9 A. When the jury comes back with a verdict, that
10 A. T'm going to say one percent because he should 10 wili be what I'l} be content with.

11 have never been able to get a visa to come from 11 Q. (BY MR. LOPEZ) Ali right. So whatever your

12 Australia over here. 12 lawyers ask for, you, in fact, will be content with

13 Q. (BY MR. LOPEZ) You would give him that much of {13 whatever the Jjury awards?

14 awalk? You would say he was only cne percent 14 A. Yesah, because we're going to court.

15 responsible -- 15 Q. But this is my question: Whatever your lawyers

16 MR. GIBSON: Objection, form. 16 ask for, you and your wife will be content with whatever |

17 Q. (BY MR. LOPEZ) -- for what he himself did to 17 the jury awards as compensation? 3

18  your son — 18 A. Can you explain? You're -- you're acting like

19 MR. STEAKLEY: Objection, form, 13 they're asking for something. Are you --

20 Q. (BY MR. LOPEZ) -- even after he's admitted 20 Q. They are asking for something. Let's say that

21 doing it? 21 your lawyers, in the trial of this lawsuit --

22 A. He gets out of jail when I'm 62 years old. 22 A. Okay,

23 Meredith Ragsdale, Jeepers and Kathy are down there at 23 Q. -- ask the jury for miilions of dollars in

24 their camp making money, going on vacations, havinga |24 Compensation for what happened to your son. Are you

25 good time, doing what they want to do. Camp America 25  with me so far?

25 (Pages 94 to 97)
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Fe Y — Scott Zirus - Abuser claims he is innocent despite Previous Posts
Le : confessions o
{Fhane ] Traymatic Brain injuries
— This story from the West Australian caught my eye this week. it concerns the 10 Children
— man who plead guilty to sexually molesting two boys at a Kerrville, Texas

summer camp. We uncovered evidence that he molested several other boys.
Police confiscated a iap top computer from the man when he was arrested
and discovered it contained hundreds of chiig pornography pictures. We tried

Eamily Sues Qver Injury
to Son in Foster Care

icen to depose him in the case but he refused to answer any questicns citing his ﬁQfmlalKS.w;ad_lbx
' right against self-incrimination. Now serving a 40-year prison term, he has
) A Rape By Nurse
L apparently started a Facebook page and a website claiming his innocence.
_ Part of what concerns me is the abifity of someone sefving a prison sentence Eamily Sues Schogl

for sexually abusing children having access to the internet and Facebook. It
seems like this would be a perfect avenue for g pedophile to gain access to
children. The inherent problem with Facebook and the internet is that
someone can pretend to be someone they are not and gain access to
children. ' not sure why a prison would allow someone like this to have
internet access, but it reaffirms the advice to carefutly monitor your child's on
line activities.

Taken from The West Austratian publication on July 3, 2014 -

District for $10 Mitlion
After Sledding Accident

Eamities of Sandv Hook
Victims Sue Gun
Manufacturer

hildren Injured an:

Killed in Tennegsee Bus

A West Australian man serving a 40-year jail term in Texas for sexually Erash

abusing children at a summer camp has made a plea to Foreign Affairs Former High School
Minister Julie Bishop to help his appeal against what he describes as his *a‘gk_su—‘
"wrongful and illegal incarceration”. Scott Zitus, criginally from Pinjarra, was Q”:j‘%ﬁ—fef
failed in the US in 2010 after accepting a plea deal over aflegations he SLQ‘QLSLM
assaulted three boys while working at the Camp Stewart for Bays in Hunt, Concussions
Texas, as part of an international exchange program. Mike Sawicki helps
He was convicted of aggravated sexuaf assauit of & child, sexual contact with victims of sexual

a child, and continuous sexual abuse of a child younger than 14, and will have ossault

to serve a1 least 20 years of his sentence until he is eligible for release. Famil tuden

In a letter to _The West Australian _, Zirus revealed he intends to argue his Injured in At Clags
innocence to the US Court of Appeals, claiming he was "iilegally interrogated” Sues School District

by police before his confession.

And he is demanding Australia supply a US lawyer 10 oversee his case, a
request sent to Ms Bishop's office last month.

http://chj]dsafetylaw.com/lawyer/20 1 4/07/28/Camp-sexual-assault/Scott-Zirus—--Abuser-cIai... 4/1/2015
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SCOT £1rus - AbUser clanns he 1s innocent aesplte contessions 1 Chila :saIety Law Blog t’age 2ot
“The reason for this request is that consulate officials lack the requisite Famili ver
knowledge of constitutional and Federal appellate law to recognise anerror,”  Teacher's Abuse of

Zirus wrote. Special Ne:Js Children

Ms Bishop's office confirmed the Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade
was monitoring Zirus' case, Blog Categories
"The embassy will continue to provide appropriate consular assistance to Mr o
Zirus," 3 department spokesman said. Camp injuries
Zirus claims that if he is not supplied & lawyer, Australia will be “failing its

Camp sexyal assaulf

duty to affirmatively protect his rights”.
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UNCLASSIFIED

8. 22{1)@)(i))] To dfat.gov.au" @dfat.gov.au>
S0 N w— ,
ov-au> $.22(1 )(a)(iy .22(1)(a)(i)

16/12/201008:33AM  bec
Subject Request for information about likely sentence [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

— UNCLASSIFIED
i 8.22(1)(a)(ii)

The Western Australian Office of Public Prosecutions has considered my request for an approximate
sentence and has asked for additionaj information. 1 understand that you may not be able to
provide any additional information given the nature of the matter, but ! thought | would ask you just
in case.

The additional information sought by the WA QPP is set out in the email beiow,

I ook forward to hearing from you.

‘Cheers

s.22(1)(a)(ii) W

Federal Offenders Unit
Attorney-General's Department
3-5 National Circuit

Barton ACT 2600
‘Telephone: (02) 6141 2812
Fax: (02) 6141 4204

Email $.22(1)(a)(ii)
5.22(1)(a )iy

From: mailto:l:bdpp.wa.gov.au] "‘**'*('-)"('“K*")J

Sen;: Wednesdav, 15 December 2010 6:33 PM

TO:ES.22(1 @) )

Ca| '

Subject: TRIM: RE: Request for information about Iikely sentence

Dearig 25(1)@('__@

Your below enquiry has been passed to the Appeals section of our office to assist with an
approximation of the sentence the offender may have received for analogous offending in Western
Australia.

| appreciate there may be issues pertaining to the classified nature of some information, but is it
possible for our office to be pravided with 3 short précis of the facts relating to each of the 4 charges?

Specifically the following details would assist greatiy in providing a more accurate assessment of the
possible WA sentence for the offender's behaviour:

1. Nature of the conduct in each offence (i.e. was it kissing, touching, forcing child to touch
offender, masturbation of either child or offender)

2. Was there any fellatio either by offender on child or offender forcing child to fellate
offender? Also, was there any digital penetration? | ask this because this conduct would be




classified as penetration under WA statutes but may not necessarily be classified as such
under Texan statutes {which | am just about to look at},

3. Was there any physical force or violence, or threatened forcelviolence, or other threats
involved in the conduct?

4. Was the offender in a position of trust toward the victims?

5. Where the offending involved repeated acts of sexual abuse against victims, for how
long did the offending take place in each case?

" 1have copiedas our contact with this office, and also our Appeals Manager (Senior State
iy@s | will most likely pass my preliminary research and opinion tq -

finalisation = -
s.22(1)(@)(ii

| State Prosecutor | Appeals s.22(1)(a) i
Plesse nole, s in the office on Tuesdays snd Wednesda VS
Office of the Director of Public Prosecutions for Western Australia
Telephone 08 9425 3718 Facsimile 08 9425 3600

Level 1 international House, 26 St Georges Terrace PERTH WESTERN AUSTRALIA 6000

Sent: Wednesday, 15 December 2010 2:52 PM
Toiis 22(1 }(8)(ii)

Cc:
Subject: FW: Request for information about likely sentence [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

or

$.22(1)(a)(ii)

Legal Projects Officer

Office of the Director of Public Prosecutions
Level 1, 26 St Georges Terrace

PERTH WA 6000

Telephone:  (08) 9425 3813

Fax: (08) 9425 3608

Emai; 5.22(1)(a)(ii) @ dpp.wa.qov.au
From:ls.22( 1)(@)(ii) i mailto:'s.22(1 )(a)(ii)ﬁbag.gov.au]

. Sent: Wednesday, 15 December 2010 11:22 AM

To:ls 22(1)(a)(ii
Subject: FW: Request for information about likely sentence [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

UNCLASSIFIED

UNCLASSIFIED

Dears.22(1)(aii) |
Thank you for speaking with me earlier today about this matter.

The CommoanaIﬁrAttomEvﬁWf'rb

. FOI'No: 1303-F516 File Ref: 13/4532




R R R S

the Australian Government should support an amnesty for an Australian offender incarcerated
overseas. To do this the government needs to ensure that individuals have served the equivalent of
the term they would have served in Australia for the crimes they had committed minus one year (to
allow time for in-country administrative processes). The offender in question is from Western

Australia and would ordinarily have been charged with Western Australian offences.

I would be grateful if you would provide advice on an the equivalent sentence for this offender. The
relevant information available to the Department is below.

The offender was convicted of the following offences:

1.  AGGRAVATED SEXUAL ASSAULT CHILD

First Degree Felony

Texas Penal Code Statute 22.021{a)(2)(8)
httg:[[www.statutes.Iegis.state.tx.us[docs{ge[htm(ge.22.htm

2, AGGRAVATED SEXUAL ASSAULT CHILD

First Degree Felony

Texas Penal Code Statute 22.021(a}(2)(B}
http://www.statutes.Iegis.state.tx.us/docs/pe/htm/oe.zz.htm

3. SEX ABUSE OF CHILD CONTINUOUS: VICTIM UNDER 14:
Texas Penal Code Statute 21.02
First Degree Felony

httg:[[www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us[Docs/PE/htm/ PE.21.htm

4. INDECENCY W/CHILD SEXUAL CONTACT

Second Degree Felony

Texas Penal Code Statute 21.11(a)(1)

http:// Www.statutes.legis.state, tx.us/Docs/PE/htm/PE.21.htm

Extracts from the Texas Penal Code are attached,

The offender’s name is Scott Zirus and he was 25 years of age at the time of the offences.

The victims were between the ages of 9 and 10 years.

The Department has been told that the circumstances of the offences did not involve sexual
penetration and that the offender’s acts ‘would be closer aligned with the Western Australian
Criminal Code definitions of “indecently dealing” and “sexual behaviour”.

An aggravating feature of the first two offences was the continued abuse of the victims.

The offender did not provide any assistance to local law enforcement and no other individuals were
arrested with him or named as accomplices. The offender has no prior criminal convictions in the

United States.

The offender pleaded guilty to all four charges as part of a plea agreement under which he received
a sentence of 40 years imprisonment, with a non-parole period of 20 years.




Many thanks for your assistance. | look forward to hearing from you.

Cheers

Federal Offenders Unit
Attomey-General's Department
3-6 National Circuit

Barton ACT 28600
Telephone: (02) 6141 2812
Fax: (02) 61414204

Email: s,22(1)(a)(ii)Rag.qov.au

If you have received this transmission in error please
notify us immediately by return e-mail and delete ali
copies. If this e-mail or any attachments have been sent
to you in error, that error does not constitute waiver

of any confidentiality, privilege or copyright in respect

of information in the e-mail or attachments.
Disclaimer: This e-mail may contain confidential and privileged material
for the sole use of the intended recipient(s). Any review, use,
distribution or disclosure by others is strictly prohibited. If you are not
the intended recipient {or authorized to receive for the recipient), please
contact the sender immediately by return email and delete all copies of
this email document.

If you have received this transmission in error please
notify us immediately by return e-mail and delete alf
copies. [f this e-mail or any attachments have been sent
to you in error, that error does not constitute waiver

of any confidentiality, privilege or copyright in respect

of information in the e-mail or attachments.
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US: AUST 'CHILD PREDATOR' AGREES TO SERVE 40 YEARS
IN TEXAS JAIL

Q
|
1
-
By Peter Mitchel
LOS ANGELES, Apri! 16 AAP - An Australian camp counsellor labelled a “child predator”
by US authorities has surprised Texas prosecutors by agreeing to serve 40 years in .
prison for sexually assallting five young boys at a summer camp, .
When Scott Zirus, 26, from Pinjarra, Western Australia, was led Into court In Kerrville,
Texas, on Friday he was expected to plead not guilty to the assaults, but in an about
face that also surprised his lawyer, Zlrus admitted his gulit and accepted a plea deal.

Just days ago Zirus rejected the 40-year plea deal.

Prosecutors had vowed to seek the maximum sentence under Texas law of life in jail if
Zirus took the case to trial and forced his young victims, aged five and six-years-old, to

"If we were going to go to trial Zirus would never see the free world again,” Todd
Burdick, an investigator in the Kerr County District Attorney's Office, told AAP. .

ZIFus' American lawyer James Patterscon said the threat of a life sentence in the Texas

" Prison system weighed heavily on Zirys. . E;

"He had completely rejected the deal and I guess he jyst got to thinking about it and
what the downside was and he declded to take it," Mr Patterson said,

Zirus Is ellglble for barole in 20 years.

Mr Burdick and other members of the prosecuting team believe g life sentence slapped

on one of Zirus' cell mates Persuaded Zirus to take the deal. 8 s
Zirus shares a cef in the Kerry County Jail with Alfredo Ramirez, a 27-year-old from \Q‘?
Kerrville, who fought allegations of sexually assaulting 13 and 14-year-old girts, but lost

the case and on Thursday was sentenced to 119 years’ Jail. ,

"I think that changed Mr Zirug' mind," Mr Burdick said of the Ramirez verdict,

"Zirus is in the same cell with him.
"All of the sex offenders have the same cell togethar,"
Zirus was working at a boys camp in Hunt, Texas, as a counsellor last year under an

international exchange program when the first young victims came forward with the
allegations, ‘
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National
Child predator Scott Zirus agrees to 40 years in
Texanjaﬂ

+ From: PerthNow
* Aprit 18, 2010 12:12AM

4 retweet

Scott Zirus may have changed his mind after his céllmate received a 119-year sentence for child abuse / AP
Source: AP

= Child abuser accepfs plea deal
* Surprises even his own lawyers
* Prosecutors threatened life sentence

When Scott Zirus, 26, a Scout Jeader from Pinjarra, was led into court in Kerrville, Texas, on
Friday it was expected he would plead not guilty to the assaults, but he admitted his guiit and
accepted a plea deal he had only days before rejected.

Prosecutors had intended to seek the maximum sentence - life in jail - if Zirus took the case to
trial and forced hig young victims, aged five and six-years-oid, to testify in court.

_"if we were going to go to trial Zirus would never see the free world again,"” Todd Burdick, an
Investigator in the Kerr County District Attorney's Office, told AAP.

Zirus's American lawyer, James Patterson, said the threat of a life sentence in the Texas prison
system weighed heavily on his client.

http://www.news.corn.au/national/child—predator-scott-zirus-agrees-t0-40—_vears-in-tex. . 13/0772011
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d.';side was and he decided to take it," Mr Patterson said.
Zirus will be eligible for parole in 20 years.

Mr Burdick and other members of the prosecuting team believe a life sentence slapped on one of
Zirus's celimates persuaded Zirus to take the deal.

Zirus shares a cell in the Kerry County Jail with Alfredo Ramirez, a 27-year-old from Kerrville,
who fought allegations of sexually assaulting 13 and 14-year-old girls, but lost the case and on
Thursday was sentenced to 119 years' jail.

"I think that changed Mr Zirus' mind,” Mr Burdick said.
"Zirus is in the same cell with him. All of the sex offenders have the same cell together."

Zirus was working at a boys camp in Hunt, Texas, as a counseilor last year under an international
exchange program when the first young victims came forward with the allegations,

Prosecutors originally charged Zirus with assaulting three boys, but five victims eventually came
forward.

Zirus also ran a children's camp in West Australia and was involved in the Scout movement.

After Zirus's computer was examined by US authorities Kerr County Sheriff Rusty Hierholzer
labelled Zirus a child predator and said Zirus may have Australian victims.

West Australian authorities began an investigation and interviewed 370 children who attended
Australian camps involving Zirus. Four alleged victims came forward.

Mr Patterson said Zirus will apply to serve his Texas jail sentence in Australia, but the Kerr
County DA's office says he will not be successfuyl.

Mr Burdick said West Australian authorities will also have to wait until Zirus completes his
sentence in Texas before he can be brought before the courts in Austratia.

"They'll get a crack at him after he goes through the Texas penitentiary,” Mr Burdick said.

The Texas victims and their families were relieved Zirus entered the guilty pleas and would never
be allowed to be a free man in the US again.

When Zirus serves his time he will be immediately deported to Australia and banned from
entering the US.

Zirus pled guiity in court on Friday to charges of aggravated sexual assault of a child, sexual
contact with a child and continuous sexual abuse of a child under 14.

In Australia Zirus is accused of eight counts of indecent dealing with a chiid under 13, one count
of procuring and inciting a child to do an indecent act and one count of indecently recording a
child.

Are you sure you want to visit

L £e Y

http://Www.news.com.au/nationaI/child-predator-scott-zirus-agrees-to-40-years-in-tex... 13/07/2011
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Australian abused boys at US summer ca

“PETER MITCHELL
iApni! 18, 2010
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Read iater

_?LOS ANGELES: AN AUSTRALIAN youth counselior labelled a "child predator” by US authorities surprised proseculors by agreeing to serve 40 years

in a Texas prison for sexually assaulting five boys at 2 summer camp.

I?r\l\men Scott Zirus, 28, from Pinjarra, Wesl!em Australia, was led into court in Texas on F riday, he was expected fo plead not guilty to the assaults, but
jin an about-face, Zirus admitted his guilt and accepted a plea deal. Jjust days ago Zirus had rejected the 40-year plea deal.

) ;'Prosecutors had vowed to seek the maximum sentence - life in jail - if Zirus had taken the case {o trial
%to tesfify in court. .

and forced his young victims, aged five and six,

;"If we were going to go to frial Zirus would never see the free world again,” Todd Burdick, an investigator in the Kerr County District Attorney's Offica,

said. :
|
He will be eligible for parole in 20 years.

i )
iirus was working as a boys camp counsellor [ast year on an exchanga program when the first of five victims came forward. He also ran a children's

' iQ}amp in Western Australia and was in the Scouts movement.

i .
jAflter Zirus's computer was exantined by US authorities, Kerr County sheriff Rusty Hierholzer 'abelled Zirus a child predator and said he may have

:Austraﬁan victims,

! .
Authorities have interviewed 370 children who attended Australian camps at which Zirus was working.
|

Four alleged victims came forwarg.

;'erus will apply to serve his Texas jail sentence in Australfa, but the Kerr County DA's office says he wifl not be suceessful. Mr Burdick said West
Australian authorities would have to wait until Zirus completed his sentence in Texas before he couid be brought to Australia.

;‘They‘ll get a crack at him after he goes through the Texas penitentiary," Mr Burdick said.

‘ .
Mhen Zirus serves his tme he will be deported.
|

?ln Australia, ha is accused of eight counts of indecentiy dealing with a chiid under 13, one count of pro'curing and inciting a child to do an indeceni act

and one count of Indecenty recording a chilg,
i
i

http://www. brisbanetimes.com.au/world/aush‘alian-abused-boys-at-

us-summer-camp-... 03/05/2012
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AN Australian camp counselior labelled a “'child predator” by Texan authorities will serve 40 years in
prison for sexually assaulting five young boys at a summer camp.

Yesterday, Scott Zirus, 26, from Pinjarra, Western Australia, admitted his guilt in a Kerrville court.
Prosecutors had vowed to seek life in Jail if Zirus went to trial and forced his young victims, aged five and
six years, to testify in court.

Zirus was working at a boys' camp in Hunt, Texas, last year under an intemational exchange program
when the first young victims came forward with the allegations.

Zirus also ran a camp in WA. Four alleged victims have since come forward.
Copyright 2010 Nationwide News Pty Limited

Australian camp worker abused boys

PETER MITCHELL

News; Pg. 20

The Sun Herald ( Sydney, Australia)
April 18, 2010 Sunday

First Edition

AN AUSTRALIAN youth counsellor labelled a "child predator” by US authorities surprised Prosecutors
by agreeing to serve 40 years in 2 Texas prison for sexually assaulting five boys at a summer camp.

When Scott Zirus, 26, from Pinjarra, Western Australia, was led into court in Kerrville, Texas, on Friday,
he was expected to plead not guilty to the assaults, but in an about-face, he admitted his guilt and
accepted a plea deal.

Prosecutors had vowed to seek the maximum sentence under Texas law, life in jail, if Zirus had taken the
case to trial and forced his young victims, aged five and six, to testify in court. He will be eligible for
parole in 20 years.

Zirus was working af a camp as a counsellor Jast year on an exchange program when the first of five
victims came forward.

He also ran a children's camp in Western Australia and was involved in the Scouts movement.

Authorities have interviewed 370 children who attended Australian camps at which Zirus was working.
Four alleged victims came forward.

In Australia, he is accused of eight counts of indecently dealing with a child under 13, one count of
procuning and inciting a child to do an indecent act and ope count of indecently recording a
child.Copyright 2010 John Fairfax Publications Pty Ltd
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MAJ; Pg. 14

The West Australian (Perth)
April 19, 2010 Monday
Second Edition

An Australian camp counsellor labelled a child predator by US authorities has surprised Texas
prosecutors by agreeing to serve 40 years in prison for sexually assaulting five young boys at a summer

camp. -
When Scott Zirus, 26, from the South-West town of Pinjarra, was led ioto court in Kerrville, Texas, he
was expected to plead not guilty but in an about-face that also surprised his lawyer, Zirus admitted his
guilt and accepted a plea deal he had rejected days earlier.

Todd Burdick, an investigator in the Kerr County District Attorney's office, said WA authorities would
have to wait until Zirus finished his sentence in Texas before he could be brought before the courts in
Australia.

In WA, Zirus is accused of cight counts of indecent dealing with a child under I3, one count of
procuring and inciting a child to do an indecent act and one count of indecently recording a child.

Molester to serve 40 years

WORLD; Pg. 44

The Sunday Mail (Queensland, Australia)
April 18, 2010 Sunday

2 - State - Main Country Edition

LOS ANGELES: An Australian camp counsellor labelled a “child predator” by US authorities has
surprised prosecutors by agreeing to serve 40 years in prison for sexually assaulting five young boys at a
summer camp.

When Scott Zirus, 26, from Pinjarra, Western Australia, was led into court in Kerrville, Texas, on Friday
he was expected to plead not guilty to the assaults.

But in an about-face that also surprised his lawyer, Zirus admitted his guilt and accepted a plea deal.

Tust days ago Zirus rejected the 40-year plea deal.

Prosecutors had vowed to seck the maximum sentence under Texas law of life in ail if Zirus took the
case to trial and forced his young victims, aged five and six years, to testify in court.

"If we were going to 80 to trial, Zirus would never see the free world again,” said Todd Burdick, an
investigator in the Kerr County Distriet Attorney's Office. .

Zims's American lawyer James Patterson said the threat of a life sentence in the Texas prison system had
weighed heavily on Zirus.

Zirus is eligible for parole in 20 years.
Copyright 2010 Nationwide News Pty Limited o
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After Zims' computer was examined by US authorities Kerr County Sheriff Rusty Hierholzer labelled
Zirus achild predator and said Zirus may have Australian victims.

West  Australian  authorities began an investigation and interviewed 370 children who attended
Australian camps involving Zirus . Four alleged victims came forward .

Mr Patterson said Zirus will apply to serve his Texas jail sentence in Australia , but the Kerr County
DA's office says he will not be successful,

Zirus completes his sentence

Mr Burdick said West Australian authorities will also hévc to wait until
in Texas before he can be brought before the courts in Australia .

"They'll get a crack at him after he goes through the Texas penitentiary," Mr Burdick said. The Texas
victims and their families were relieved Zirus entered the guilty pleas and would never be allowed to be

a free man in the US again,

When Zirus serves his time he will be immediately deported to Australia and banned from entering the
US. Zirus pled guilty in court on Friday to charges of aggravated sexual assault of a child, sexual
coniact with 2 child and continuous sexuai abuse of a child under 14.

In Australia Zirus is accused of eight counts of indecent dealing with a child under 13, one count of
procuring and inciting a child to do an indecent act and one count of indecently recording a child.

40-year deal for molester

PETER MITCHELL IN LOS ANGELES
News; Pg. 33

Sunday Mail (South Australia)

April 18, 2010 Sunday

1 - State Edition

AN Australian camp counsellor labelled a “*child predator” by US authorities has surprised Texag

prosecutors by agreeing lo serve 40 years in prison for scxually assaulting five young boys at a summer

camp.

When Scott_Zirus, 26, from Pinjarra, in WA, was led into court in Kerrville, Texas, he was expected to,
plead not guilty to the assaults, but in an about-face that also surprised his lawyer, Zirus admitted his guilt

investigator in the Kerr County District Attorney's Office,

Zirus is eligible for parole in 20 years.
Copyright 2010 Nationwide News Pty Limited
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US:FAMILIES OF AUST PEDOPHILE'S VICTIMS TO TELL OF
THEIR PAIN

ws (Tue 27 Apr 2010 12:36:11 PM}

By Peter Mitchelt

KERRVILLE, Texas, April 26 AAP - Australlan pedophile Scott Zirus will come face-to-
face in & Texas courtroom on Tuesday {(Wednesday AEST) with the furious parents of
the five young American boys he sexually abused at a summer camp last yaar.

The parents will have an opportunity to stare directly In Zirug’ eyes, tell him about the
devastation he caused ta thelr five- and elx-year-old sons and then watch as the 26-
year-old Is marched off 1o serve a 40-year Jall sentence in Texas' harsh prison system.

The emotionat confrontation, called an *open forum®, wiil take place in the Kerr County
Courthouse in the quaint rural town of Kerrville, about one hour's drive north of San
Antonlg, as part of Zirus' sentencing.

Earfler this month, Zirug agreed to plead gullty to the assaults and accept a 40-year
plea deai offered by prosecutors from the Kerr County District Attorney’s Office.

The prosecdi:ors had vowed to send Zirus to Rl for the rest of his life, but the plea deal
ends the need for a trial ang for hls young victims to testify.

"The familles didn't want thel; children re-victimised by putting them on the stand,*
Todd Burdlck, a District Attorney's Office investigator, toid AAP, .

Zirus, a chubby 177cm tall, 81kg camp counsellor from Pinjarra, Westem Australfa, flew
to Kerr County last year to work at a summer camp for bays.

He was charged with aggravated sexual assault of a child, sexval contact with a child

and continuous sexual abuse of a chlid under 14,
After his arrest in Texas, West Australian autherities launched an nvestigation Into
Zirus, who ran his own camp In Austraiia, and found four alleged victims,

ring and inciting a child to do an indecent act and one count of indecently

Zirus will face elght counts of indecent dealing with a chiid under 13, one count of
procu
recording a child when he completes his US sentencs,

He will be eligible for reiease in Texas after 20 years and will be immediately deported
to Australia. :

AAP pmy/rdh

Copyright © AAP NewsWire, 2010
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US: PARENTS TELL OF DAMAGE CAUSED BY AUST PEDOPHILE

By Peter Mitchel|
KERRVILLE, Texas, Aprit 27 AAP - For elmost an hour Australian pedophile Scott Zirus
sat stlumped in a chair in a Texas courtroom, his face emotionless as harrowing stories

were told about the damage he'd inflicted on five young American boys entrusted in his
care at a summer camp last year, :

The parents of & six-year-old boy were the First to stand at a lectern in the Kerrville
courthouse, just three matres from Zirus, whose legs were shackled.

Sheriffs stood close by in case the parants or Zirus tried to attack the other.
Objects were cleared from tables to pravent either party using them as missileg,

The mother, her hands trembling, looked directly into Zirus' eyes ang told how excited
her son was to attend his first summer camp in Hunt, Texas, but returned home 2
different boy.

The vivacious young fad was now "more reserved, guarded and not as trusting” after
being befriended, then sexually abused, at the camp by the 26-year-old counsellor,

The boy is undergoing therapy and may have to continue the sesstons for many years
to come, ’

“As his mother, 1 am angry his innocence has been stripped away," she told Zirus, who
stared back stone-faced, :

Next up was the mother and father of a seven-year-old who was so traumatised after
being assaulted by Zirus at the camp he has trouble stepping outslde his home.

"When he is out at public piaces he gets nervous," the boy's mother, who gave birth to
a daughter just days after the aliegations emerged last August, told Zirus,

"We feel we let him down by not protecting him.»
The boy is also undergolng therapy.

The pain of facing Zirus was too Much for the parents of two other victims, who
declined to appear in court for what the Texas judicial system calls an "apen farum?",

The absent parents did submit victim Impact statements that Rosa Lavender, Kerr
County's victim setvices co-ordinator, read out in court.

The family of the fifth victim is filtng a civil lawsuit angd opted not ta participata in the
session,

°This is your time,® Kerr County District Attorney Amos Barton told the family members
before Tuesday's open forum began,

"It Is your chance to look him in the eye and say your plece.”

—_——
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Ms Lavender, reading from the impact statements, told how a six-year-old ciassified as
“a gifted child® and who once loved cleaning his room, making his own breakfast an_cl
playing basketball and soccer, was so damaged by his encounter with Zirus that he is
now haunted by nightmares and talks about dying.

The boy struggles in scheol, *exhibits signs of anxlety" and is constantly checking the
- doors at home to ensure they are locked.

“He talks, cries and screams in his sleep," Mg Lavender, reading from the victim Impact
statement, said. .

"He has said he wished he weren't alive and wished he could go to sleep and never
wake up.

"He will raquire years of therapy.”

Ms Lavender alsg spoke for the family of another seven-year-cld boy, whose mother
opted riot to attend.

"She was worrled If she was in the same court as him (Zirus) she would not be able to
control herself,* the boy's grandmother, who observed from the second row, tald AAP.

Zirus ran his own children's camp in Western Australia before taking up the Jjob of
counsellor at Camp Stewart, a popufar Bb-year-old summer destination for Amerlcan
boys an hour's drive north of San Antonlo.

While Zirus appeared on the surface as 3 wenderful counsellor, blogs and web rants he
Issued under a pseudonym on MySpace revealed he was a self-professed leader of the
Shadoran movement and belleved it was "a fact that elght out of 16 boys are bisexyal
but only two out of these aight will ever admit it".

"I am a Shadoran and we have a special 'sexuality’ called * neltia 'this 'sexuality’ Is
unique because it has no boundries {sic)," Zirus wrote on a MySpace blog prosecutars
used as evidence.

"You are open to love from ANY age, race or gender ... I wlll love whom ever I love.”

" At Camp Stewart, Zirys slept in the same quarters as his victims and earnt thair trust
by playing the didgeridoc and offering cookies.

The grandmather who attended Tuesday's court proceedings told AAP her grandson
slept on a bunk directly above Zjrus, _ :

" Three boys originally came forward, forcing sheriffs to scramble to San Antonio alrport
on August 20 to arrest Zlrus minutes before his plane took off for the first leg of his
Jjourney home to Pinjarra, south of Perth.

Zirus was charged with aggravated sexual assault of 5 child, sexual contact with a child
and continuous sexual abuse of a child under 14 and faced life Imprisonmaent in Texas,
but under a plea deal he agreed ta a 40-year sentence.

He will be eligible for parcle in 20 years, although it is unlikely he will be granted early
release because of the nuember of victims and the nature of crimes.

While the young boys' parents vented their anger and pain during their court addresses,
Zlrus declined to speak when Kerr County District Court Judge Melvin "Rex" Emerson
asked if he had anything to say his victims,

"Ne, sir,” Zirus quietly said.
That angered the parents in court.
"He could have stoad up and just saig 'sorry'," a six-vear-old victim's father told AAP,

"{t really grates on me because the last words Scott Zirus sald to me was when we
picked up my son at camp. He luoked me in the eye and said: 'See you next year'”

The Texas jnves.tigation led Western Australlan authorities to launch their own Zirus
probe and after interviewing severa| hundred children, found four alleged Australiar: sex
abuse victims.
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US: US COURT SENTENCES AUST PEDOPHILE TO 40 YEARS

ews (Wed 28 Apr 2010 6:30:40 AM)

By Peter Mitcheil

KERRVILLE, Texas, April 27 AAP - The parents of two young boys victimised by Scott

Zirys at a Texas summer camp came face-to-face with tha Austrailan pedophile during

an emotlonal court hearing on Tuesday that culminated in a judge Issuing & 40-year
prison sentence.

The parents vented theh: anger, paln and heartbreak at the destruction Zirus had
caused ta their "Innocent" boys.

Zisus, dressed in a blue prison jumpsult and his legs shackted, sat calmly in the
courthousa In Kerrville, Texas, about one hour's drive north of San Antonlo,

"As his mother I am angry hils innocence has been stripped away," ane mother, not
named In court to protect the Hdentity of her she-year-old son, told Zirus,

Zirus, 26, from Pinjarra, south of Perth, pleaded gultty to assaulting five young boys
while working'as a counsellor at a summer camp In Hunt, Texas, last year.

Two sets of parents addressed the court, a victim services counsellor read out victim
impact statements from two other famiiles while the fifth family dedlined to address the

court.

After the parents gave thelr painful addresses, Kerr County District Court Judge Meivin
"Rex* Emerson offered Zirus a chance to say somathing to the parents but he declined,

“Mr Zirus, do you have anything to say hefore sentencing?” Judge Emerson asked,

"No, sir," Zirus sald.

Judge Emerson then confirmed a 40-year jall sentence agreed under a plea deal
between prosecutors and Zirus earller this month. )

The sentence wiil be served in Texas and he will be eligible for parple In 20 years.

District Attorney Amos Barton said outside court it was likely Zirus would have to serve
the entlre 40 years considering the number of victims and nature of the crime.

When Zirus, who ran his own children's camp in Western Australla and worked with
Scouts, Is released, Australian autharities wiil be waiting for him.

After Texas sheriffs éharged him last August and videos and photos were found on his
laptop computer, an investigation by West Australian authorlitles discovered four young

Australian sex abuse victims,

When his Texas jail sentance is campleted Zirus will be deported to Australia to face the
West Australian charges. : :
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WA SEX ABUSER WANTS BISHOP'S HELP
Tim Clarke

A West Australian man serving a 40-year jail term in Texas for sexually abusing children at a summer
camp has made a plea to Foreign Affairs Minister Julie Bishop to help his appeal against what he

describes as his “wrongful and illegal incarceration”.

Scott Zirus, originally from Pinjarra, was jailed in the US in 2010 after accepting a plea deal over
allegations he assaulted three boys while working at the Camp Stewart for Boys in Hunt, Texas, as

part of an international exchange program.

He was convicted of aggravated sexual assault of a child, sexual contact with a child, and continuous
sexual abuse of a child younger than 14, and will have to serve at least 20 years of his sentence until

he is eligible for release.

fn a letter to The West Australian, Zirus revealed he intends to argue his innocence to the US Court of

Appeals, claiming he was “illegally interrogated” by police before his confession.

And he is demanding Australia supply a US lawyer to oversee his case, a request sent to Ms Bishop’s

office last month,

“The reason for this request is that consulate officials lack the requisite knowledge of constitutional

and Federal appellate law to recognise an error,” Zirus wrote.

Ms Bishop's office confirmed the Department of Forei gn Affairs and Trade was monitoring Zirus'

case.

“The embassy will continue to provide appropriate consular assistance to Mr Zirus,” a department

spokesiman said.

Zirus claims that if he is not supplied a lawyer, Australia will be “failing its duty to affirmatively
protect his rights™,




From his prison cell in Abilene, Texas, he has launched a website and Facebook page pleading his

innocence.
Zirus was accused of molesting several boys at the camp while sleeping in the same room.

Camp Stewart and Camp America, who employed Zirus, have since settled lawsuits for more than $8

million after being sued by Zirus' American victims.

He is also facing an arrest warrant in WA over 10 alleged offences against four boys at the Grassroots

Ventures camps he ran in the Peel region between 2006 and 2008.
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NO. B(9-490, B09-552 & B09-553

THE STATE OF TEXAS § IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF

VS, g KERR COUNTY, TEXAS

SCOTT ASH JAMES ZIRUS g 198TH JUDICIAL DISTRICT
REJECTION OF PLEA OFFER

My name is SCOTT ASH JAMES ZIRUS, I am the Defendant in the above named and
numbered causes. [ have been given, by my Attorney, James W. Patterson, the offer made by the State
of fifty (50) vears confinement in the Texas penitentiary. I understand that if | am tried that there js a
possibility that I may receive life in the penitentiary. I also understand that for the charge of continuous
sexual activity, that there is a minimum time in the penitentiary of twenty five (25) years. [ also
understand that if | am tried on each of the charges and found guilty of any of the charges that each
charge can be stacked on each charge and I will have to serve one time of commitment, before I can start
serving the next term of commitment. This means that if | recetved three (3) twenty (20) year sentences
that [ could be made to serve cach of the twenty {20) year sentences, totaling sixty (60) years.

Understanding all of the above, I do not want to take the fifty year offer.

z P

s e —_—
SCOTT ASH JAMES ZIRUS
Defendant

“h.
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